
 

 

 
 
 
 

Sheffield Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
 

Sheffield City Council ● Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
 
 
Thursday 25 April 2013 at 2.00 pm 
 
Town Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Dore  
Councillor Jackie Drayton  
Councillor Harry Harpham  
Councillor Mary Lea  
Dr Margaret Ainger Clinical Commissioning Group 
Ian Atkinson Clinical Commissioning Group 
Dr Marion Sloan Clinical Commissioning Group 
Dr Ted Turner Clinical Commissioning Group 
Dr Tim Moorhead Clinical Commissioning Group 
Margaret Kitching South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Cluster 
Jayne Ludlam Executive Director, Children, Young People & 

Families 
John Mothersole Chief Executive 
Richard Webb Executive Director, Communities 
Jeremy Wight Director of Public Health 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

SHEFFIELD’S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Sheffield City Council ● Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board started to meet in shadow form in January 
2012 and became a statutory group in April 2013. The Health and Social Care Act 
2012 states that every local authority needs a Health and Wellbeing Board. It is a 
group of local GPs, local councillors, a representative of Sheffield citizens, and 
senior managers in the NHS and the local authority, all of whom seek to make local 
government and local health services better for local people. Its terms of reference 
sets out how it will operate. 
 
Sheffield's Health and Wellbeing Board has a formal public meeting every three 
months as well as a range of public events held at least once a quarter. 
 
Sheffield's Health and Wellbeing Board has a website which tells you more about 
what we do. www.sheffield.gov.uk/healthwellbeingboard 
 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552.  You 
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Board may have to 
discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any private 
items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting please report 
to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the meeting room. 
 
If you require any further information please contact Jason Dietsch on 0114 273 
4117 or email jason.dietsch@sheffield.gov.uk    
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 



 

 

 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD AGENDA 
 

Sheffield City Council ● Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

25 APRIL 2013 
 

Order of Business 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting. 
 

3. Welcome from Co-Chairs 
 Councillor Julie Dore and Dr Tim Moorhead 

 
4. Health and Well Being Board Terms of Reference 
 To adopt the Terms of Reference for the Sheffield Health and Well Being 

Board. 
 

5. Sheffield Health and Well Being Board Plan 2013-14 
 

6. City Council, Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS England Plans 
for 2013-14 
 

7. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Joint Health and Well 
Being Strategy (JHWS) Update 
 

8. Date and Time of Next Meeting 
 The next meeting is on Thursday 27 June 2013 at 2.00pm, at the Town 

Hall, Sheffield. 
 

9. Round Table Discussion 
 

  
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
New standards arrangements were introduced by the Localism Act 2011.  The new 
regime made changes to the way that members’ interests are registered and 
declared.   
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

•  Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or 
gain, which you, or your spouse or civil partner, undertakes. 

  

•  Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests.  

  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 2

•  Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner 
(or a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority -  
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

  

•  Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority.  

  

•  Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a 
month or longer.  

  

•  Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
 - the landlord is your council or authority; and  

- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner,   
has a beneficial interest. 
 

•  Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  
 

 (a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of your council or authority; and  

 
 (b) either  

- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  

- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your 
spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.  

 
 
Under the Council’s Code of Conduct, members must act in accordance with the 
Seven Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; accountability; 
openness; honesty; and leadership), including the principle of honesty, which says 
that ‘holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to 
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 
protects the public interest’. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life.  

Page 2



 3

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 

 
• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 

are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 
Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously, and has been published on the Council’s website as a downloadable 
document at -http://councillors.sheffield.gov.uk/councillors/register-of-councillors-
interests 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114 
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.gov.uk  
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Sheffield City Council 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference 
Final 

 
 

1. Establishing legislation 
 
1.1 The Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board (the Board) is established under the 

Health and Social Care Act 2012 as a statutory committee of Sheffield City Council 
(the Council) from 1 April 2013. 

 
 

2. Role of the Board 
 

2.1 The role of the Board is to be a strong and effective partnership which improves the 
commissioning and delivery of services across the NHS and the Council, leading in 
turn to improved health and wellbeing for the people of Sheffield. 

 

 

3. Statutory functions of the Board and its members 
 
3.1 The statutory functions of the Board are: 

· To undertake a joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA) 

· To develop a joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) between the Council 
and NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG) 

· To encourage integrated working between providers including use of pooled 
budgets and other financial arrangements under s75 of the NHS Act 2006. 

 
3.2 As members of the Board, the Council and the CCG must: 

· have regard to the JSNA and the JHWS in making commissioning decisions 

· include a statement by the Board in their published commissioning plans. 
 
 

4. Membership 
 
4.1 The membership of the Board is: 

· Four Elected Members; 
o The Leader of the Council 
o The Cabinet Member responsible for Adult Social Care & Public Health 
o The Cabinet Member responsible for Children & Young People 
o The Cabinet Member for Homes and Regeneration 

· Four CCG clinical representatives  

· A representative from Sheffield Healthwatch  

· Chief Executive, SCC 

· Accountable Officer  CCG 

· Director of Public Health 

· Executive Director, Children, Young People & Families, SCC 

· Executive Director, Communities, SCC 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



2 
 

· A representative of the NHS Commissioning Board (who will contribute to the 
JSNA and the JHWS and to discussions related to services commissioned by 
the NHS Commissioning Board) 
 

4.2 Other representatives from the wider health and wellbeing community in Sheffield 
may be invited to attend the Board from time to time to contribute to discussion of 
specific issues.  

 
 

5. Governance 
 
5.1 Chair: The Board will be co-chaired by the Leader of the Council and the Chair of 

the CCG, with chairing of meetings generally alternating between them. 
 

5.2 Attendance at meetings and deputies: In order to maintain consistency it is 
assumed that Board members will attend all meetings. Each member may name 2 
deputies, one of whom may attend a meeting and vote in place of the member. 
 

5.3 Quorum: 2 elected members of the Council plus 2 of the CCG clinical 
representatives. 
 

5.4 Decision-making and voting:  The Board will operate on a consensus basis. 
Where consensus cannot be achieved the matter will be put to a vote. All matters to 
be decided by the Board shall be decided by a simple majority of the members 
present, but in the case of an equality of votes, the Chair shall have a second or 
casting vote. Decisions will be made by simple majority: the Chair for the meeting at 
which the vote is taken will have the casting vote. All votes shall be taken by a show 
of hands unless decided otherwise by the Chair. 
 

5.5 Authority of representatives: It is accepted that some decisions will need to be 
made in accordance with the governance procedures of the organisations 
represented on the Board: however, representatives should have sufficient authority 
to speak for their organisations and make decisions within their own delegations. 

 
5.6 Accountability and scrutiny:  As a Council committee, the Board will be formally 

accountable to the Council. Its work may be subject to scrutiny by any of the 
Council’s relevant scrutiny committees.    

 
 

6. Meetings, agendas and papers 
 
6.1 The Board will normally meet quarterly. There will be no fewer than 3 meetings per 

financial year, with a maximum of 16 weeks between meetings. 
 
Meetings will be held in public.  Dates and venues for meetings, agendas, and 
papers will be published in advance on the Council’s website. 
 

6.2 The co-Chairs will agree the agenda for each meeting. 
 

6.3 Agendas and papers will be circulated to all members and be available on the 
Council’s website 7 days in advance of the meeting. 

Page 6



3 
 

 
6.4 Minutes will be circulated to all members, and published on the Council’s website as 

soon as possible after the meeting. 
 
 

7. Engagement with the public 
 

7.1 The Board will hold at least 2 engagement events per calendar year, open to the 
public. These events will be in addition to the formal, public meetings of the Board  
and will be a means of: 

· engaging the public in the development of the JHWS  

· developing the Board’s understanding of local people’s experiences and 
priorities for health and wellbeing 

· communicating the work of the Board in shaping health and wellbeing in 
Sheffield. 

 
 

8. Engagement with providers of health and wellbeing services 
 

8.1 The Board will hold at least 2 events per calendar year for current and potential 
future providers of health and wellbeing services in Sheffield.  These events will be 
in addition to the formal, public meetings of the Board and will be a means of: 

· engaging these organisations in the development of the JHWS 

· developing a shared perspective of the ways in which providers can contribute 
to its delivery.  

 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of: Joe Fowler, Director of Commissioning, Sheffield City 

Council 
 Tim Furness, Chief of Business Planning and 

Partnerships, NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    25 April 2013 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board Plan 2013-14 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Louisa Willoughby 
    0114 205 7143 
    louisa.willoughby@sheffield.gov.uk  
______________________________________________________________ 
Summary:  
Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board became a statutory Committee of 
Sheffield City Council on 1st April 2013 following legislation set out in the Health 
and Social Care Act 2012. The Board is a partnership between Sheffield City 
Council, NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group and Healthwatch Sheffield. 
 
A Health and Wellbeing Board brings together and is responsible for the variety of 
services that make people healthy and well, from GPs, hospitals and mental 
health services; and care homes, social activities for those with dementia and 
social services; to sports activities for children, debt advice centres, and food 
quality and air pollution – to name just a few. Being as healthy and as well as we 
can helps us to do the things we want to do, and a Health and Wellbeing Board 
brings together all the different strands that enable us to play an active role in our 
families, our communities and our city. 
 
Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board is co-chaired by Councillor Julie Dore, 
Leader of Sheffield City Council, and Dr Tim Moorhead, Chair of NHS Sheffield 
Clinical Commissioning Group. 
 
 
 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

5 
Agenda Item 5

Page 9



2 
 

The statutory functions of a Health and Wellbeing Board, as stated in the Board’s 
Terms of Reference, are to: 
§ Undertake a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). 
§ Develop a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) between the Council 

and NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG). 
§ Encourage integrated working between providers including use of pooled 

budgets and other financial arrangements under s75 of the NHS Act 2006. 
 
This report sets out Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board’s plan for 2013-14. It 
identifies some priorities for what the Board will do in the year to come, namely: 

1. Know the health and wellbeing needs of Sheffield. 
2. Make a plan to ensure the services in Sheffield meet the health and 

wellbeing needs of Sheffield people. 
3. Work with the local public and others involved with health and wellbeing in 

the city. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Questions for the Health and Wellbeing Board: 
 
Does the Board endorse this plan for 2013-14? 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the Board endorse this plan and commit to working in partnership as a 
Board and with others in 2013-14. 
 
Reasons for Recommendations: 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board in Sheffield is a new partnership between key 
commissioners in the city. This plan sets out how the Board over the coming year 
can ensure it has quality evidence of needs, workable yet ambitious strategies 
for action, and meaningful dialogue with stakeholders and members of the public 
on a number of issues including inequality. This plan sets out how, in this first 
year as a Board, these elements can all work together. 

Page 10



3 
 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD PLAN 2013-14 
 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 
  
1.1 
 

Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board became a statutory Committee of 
Sheffield City Council on 1st April 2013 following legislation set out in the Health 
and Social Care Act 2012. The Board is a partnership between Sheffield City 
Council (www.sheffield.gov.uk), NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 
(http://www.sheffieldccg.nhs.uk) and Healthwatch Sheffield 
(www.healthwatchsheffield.co.uk). 
 

1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.5 

A Health and Wellbeing Board brings together and is responsible for the variety 
of services that make people healthy and well, from GPs, hospitals and mental 
health services; and care homes, social activities for those with dementia and 
social services; to sports activities for children, debt advice centres, and food 
quality and air pollution – to name just a few. Being as healthy and as well as 
we can helps us to do the things we want to do, and a Health and Wellbeing 
Board brings together all the different strands that enable us to play an active 
role in our families, our communities and our city. 
 
Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board is co-chaired by Councillor Julie Dore, 
Leader of Sheffield City Council, and Dr Tim Moorhead, Chair of NHS Sheffield 
Clinical Commissioning Group. The full membership of the Board is available 
on the Board’s website at: www.sheffield.gov.uk/healthwellbeingboard. 
 
The statutory functions of a Health and Wellbeing Board are, as stated in the 
Board’s Terms of Reference, to: 
§ Undertake a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). 
§ Develop a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) between the 

Council and NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG). 
§ Encourage integrated working between providers including use of pooled 

budgets and other financial arrangements under s75 of the NHS Act 2006. 
 
This report sets out Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board’s plan for 2013-14. 
It identifies some priorities for what the Board will do in the year to come, 
namely: 

1. Know the health and wellbeing needs of Sheffield. 
2. Make a plan to ensure the services in Sheffield meet the health and 

wellbeing needs of Sheffield people. 
3. Work with the local public and others involved with health and wellbeing 

in the city. 
 

  
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE? 
  
2.1 
 
 
 

Sheffield people deserve the best health, care and support available. Sheffield 
already has excellent hospitals and provision for those in need, something the 
city is deservedly proud of. Following on from the Government’s reforms to 
health and social care, the Health and Wellbeing Board is a new and exciting 

Page 11



4 
 

 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.4 
 

opportunity to continue to improve health and wellbeing services for the people 
of Sheffield.  
 
The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, commissioned and spearheaded by 
the Health and Wellbeing Board, is a broad, overarching strategy which 
recognises that good health and wellbeing is a matter for every service area, 
and that people are healthy and well not just because of the health and social 
care they receive, but also because of the nature of the housing, environment, 
communities, amenities, activities and economy surrounding them. The 
Strategy focuses therefore not just on specific interventions to improve health 
and social care, but also on the ‘wider determinants’ of health. 
 
This means that the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board aims for all Sheffield 
people to be positively affected by the Strategy. The Strategy focuses on 
people, arguing that the people of Sheffield are the city’s biggest asset. The 
Strategy aims that people are able to take greater responsibility for their own 
wellbeing by making good choices. Services will work together with Sheffield 
people to design and deliver services which best meet the needs of an 
individual. 
 
It is important that the Board is successful in integrating services so as to 
reduce health inequalities and mitigate the impacts of the economic climate. A 
successful Health and Wellbeing Board will mean better chances and 
opportunities for Sheffield people, and a framework to measure the progress in 
health and wellbeing in Sheffield will be developed by September 2013. 

  
 

3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
  
3.1 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has been meeting as a shadow Board since 
January 2012, which has given it the opportunity to build up a sustainable and 
meaningful partnership geared to bring about changes for the good of Sheffield. 
 

3.2 
 
 
 
 

The work of the Health and Wellbeing Board in Sheffield is long-term, 
recognising that big changes to health and wellbeing take time to develop and 
implement, and that progress and performance targets have to be given time to 
be demonstrated. 

3.3 The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, which is at the heart of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board’s work, is a sustainable Strategy in that it recognises the 
financial climate that the Health and Wellbeing Board is operating in, but aims 
to offer innovative services that are value for money by working in new and 
different ways. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



5 
 

4.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 
  
4.1 
 

Introduction 

Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board became a statutory group in April 2013. 
It is a group of local GPs, local councillors, a representative of Sheffield citizens 
through Healthwatch Sheffield, and senior managers in the NHS and the local 
authority, all of whom seek to make local government and local health services 
better for local people. This report sets out the Health and Wellbeing Board’s 
plans for 2013-14. 

 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Health and Wellbeing Board Priorities For 2013-14 
 
Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board has three main priorities, which it will 
be considering and developing over 2013-14: 
 
Priority 1: Know the health and wellbeing needs of Sheffield. 
 
The primary means of doing this is through the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment process (www.sheffield.gov.uk/jsna). This is a process, including 
an extensive report, which will help the Health and Wellbeing Board to 
understand the health and wellbeing needs of the city and its citizens. 
 
In 2012-13, Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board, in its shadow form, held 
several events, attended by over 300 people, to identify and consult to ensure 
the evidence of needs is accurate and comprehensive. 
 
Over 2013-14, Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board will commit to: 
1. Producing an extensive report by September 2013 which will analyse the 

health and wellbeing needs of the city and identify some key strategic 
priorities for commissioners to focus on. 

2. Continuing to develop and have a comprehensive, up-to-date assessment 
of Sheffield’s health and wellbeing needs. 

 
 
Priority 2: Make a plan to ensure the services in Sheffield meet the health 
and wellbeing needs of Sheffield people. 
 
This is called the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(www.sheffield.gov.uk/healthandwellbeingstrategy). This will be a fully 
comprehensive plan, which identifies the main priorities for service provision in 
Sheffield. It will also be an ambitious plan for the city, with indicators of 
performance and plans for action. 
 
In 2012-13, Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board produced a draft Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. An initial consultation on the outcomes in the 
Strategy was carried out in summer 2012. This consultation indicated that the 
broad priorities of the Strategy were supported. 
 
Over 2013-14, Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board will commit to: 

Page 13



6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.3 
 
 

1. Holding a second more in-depth consultation on the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy in April-June 2013. This consultation will focus on a 
broad section of Sheffield people and communities, with a particular 
emphasis on hard to reach groups. It will seek to identify the key actions 
needed so that the Strategy’s outcomes can be achieved. 

2. Reviewing the results of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment process and 
the consultation on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy to produce a 
final version ready for autumn 2013. 

3. Focussing on specific priority areas related to providing integrated services 
and seeking to reduce health inequalities (i.e. not focussing on every single 
issue set out in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy). 

4. Overseeing the commissioning of services for 2014-15 (through the 
contractual mechanisms of the Clinical Commissioning Group and Sheffield 
City Council) which are based on the priorities and action plans of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

5. Monitoring key indicators of health and wellbeing in the city. 
 
 
Priority 3: Work with the local public and others involved with health and 
wellbeing in the city. 
 
Primarily the Health and Wellbeing Board’s work with the local public and 
others involved with health and wellbeing in the city will be done by assessing 
the work and reports of Healthwatch Sheffield, a newly established 
independent ‘watchdog’ for the people of Sheffield. Healthwatch Sheffield will 
have a representative on the Health and Wellbeing Board. This representative, 
as well as the individual experiences of other Board members, will help to 
represent members of the public on Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board. 
Healthwatch Sheffield will carry out its individual campaigns and work 
programmes as appropriate and as guided by its council and sub-groups. 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will also engage directly with members of the 
public and others involved with health and wellbeing in Sheffield. In 2012-13, 
Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board ran a range of events designed to 
publicise the role of the Board as well as begin a conversation about health and 
wellbeing in the city. This included a question-and-answer session attended by 
over 120 people, surveys and focus groups held with providers of health and 
wellbeing services covering over 120 people, and the JSNA events attended by 
over 300 people. 
 
Over 2013-14, Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board will commit to: 
1. Inviting the contribution of Healthwatch, members of the public, providers 

and others to improve health and wellbeing in the city. This will be done by: 
a. Holding at least four events per year designed to engage with 

members of the public and other stakeholders. Some will be 
specifically designed for providers; others will be for members of the 
public. 

b. Holding at least four formal public meetings a year, where all 
agendas, minutes and reports will be made available online 
(http://meetings.sheffield.gov.uk/council-meetings/health-and-

Page 14



7 
 

wellbeing-board) and on paper when requested. Members of the 
public are invited to attend these meetings. 

c. Welcoming suggestions for other events, surveys or initiatives that 
the Board and Board members could either support or organise. 

2. Updating the Health and Wellbeing Board’s website 
(www.sheffield.gov.uk/healthwellbeingboard) regularly with information, 
photographs and video clips when appropriate, and sending out a monthly 
e-newsletter. Information will be made available when requested on paper. 

3. Working in partnership. The Health and Wellbeing Board is by its very 
nature a partnership between the local authority, NHS and the citizens of 
Sheffield, and working together in partnership is a priority held by all Board 
members. The Health and Wellbeing Board will support Healthwatch as it 
fulfils its specific remit, as well as engaging with scrutiny committees as and 
when requested and appropriate. 

 
 
4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 

 
 
Links to the Fairness Commission 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board welcomes the work and findings of the 
Fairness Commission in the city, and acknowledges the important role that the 
Health and Wellbeing Board itself can play in working to reduce inequality and 
deliver fairness across the system for all. Reducing health inequalities and 
delivering systems that meet the needs of Sheffield people is at the heart of the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The Strategy also has a focus on the 
wider determinants of health; that is, the things which make us healthy, happy 
and well, such as good quality employment and a positive built environment. 
 
Over 2013-14, Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board will be working to 
ensure it plays its specific role, related to the Commission’s report’s 
recommendations, in: 

· Using its significant influence and authority to achieve better health 
outcomes for the people of Sheffield most in need. 

· Championing and challenging Government and partners where 
appropriate to work for a holistic approach to wellbeing in Sheffield and 
stand up for the city’s needs. 

· Understanding through the JSNA the equity of health spend in the city 
and working to allocate it more fairly when required. 

· Playing a strong and leading role in addressing the wellbeing issues 
related to work. 
 

Equally, the Health and Wellbeing Board’s constituent organisations and 
partners will do their role in achieving the Commission’s recommendations, for 
example with respect to carers, mental wellbeing, maternal health, and primary 
and community care. 
 
 
Legal and Financial Implications 
 
Over the 2013-14 financial year the Health and Wellbeing Board will not seek to 
directly commission services jointly. There are therefore no specific legal and 

Page 15



8 
 

 
 
 
 
4.5 

financial implications of the agenda and plan described above, other than those 
already commissioned and supported by the Board’s constituent organisations. 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
This report has identified three main priority areas for the Health and Wellbeing 
Board over 2013-14, and sets out ten commitments for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s over the ensuing year.  
 
The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and its expressed ambition to improve 
health and wellbeing for the people of Sheffield is at the heart of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s plans for 2013-14. Its priorities, which have health 
inequalities and the purpose of the Fairness Commission at its heart, will 
underpin all of the Board’s ongoing work. 
 

  
5.0 
 
5.1 
 
 
6.0 

QUESTIONS FOR THE BOARD 
 
Does the Board endorse this plan for 2013-14? 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
6.1 
 

That the Board endorse this plan and commit to working in partnership as a 
Board and with others in 2013-14. 

  
  
7.0 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
7.1 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board in Sheffield is a new partnership between key 
commissioners in the city. This plan sets out how the Board over the coming 
year can ensure it has quality evidence of needs, workable yet ambitious 
strategies for action, and meaningful dialogue with stakeholders and members 
of the public on a number of issues including inequality. This plan sets out how, 
in this first year as a Board, these elements can all work together. 

 
 

Page 16



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   John Mothersole 
    Chief Executive, Sheffield City Council  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    25 April 2013 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Sheffield City Council’s Health and Wellbeing 

Commissioning Plans 2013-14 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Louisa Willoughby 
    0114 205 7143 
    louisa.willoughby@sheffield.gov.uk  
______________________________________________________________ 
Summary:  

Sheffield City Council approved the 2013-14 revenue budget and capital programme 
for Sheffield at their Full Council meeting on 1 March 2013. These plans summarise 
the Council’s commissioning intentions in a number of areas of interest to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board, and provide specific detail on the investments and savings the 
Council plans to make during 2013/14. They are therefore being presented for 
comment and discussion by the Board.  

The outcomes of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy have strongly influenced 
the overall shape of the budget, both in areas with traditionally strong relationships 
with the health system (such as social care), but also areas that have a part to play 
in tackling the wider determinants of health and wellbeing (such as housing). 

The Council’s budget plans for 2013-14 can be viewed in full on the Council’s 
website at http://meetings.sheffield.gov.uk/council-meetings/full-council/agendas-
2013/agenda-1st-march-2013-budget. This report provides a summary overview of 
the Council’s approach. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
Recommendation: 

That the Health and Wellbeing Board supports the work done by Sheffield City 
Council to contribute to the outcomes and priorities of the Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy in 2013-14 and into 2014-15. 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

6a 
Agenda Item 6

Page 17



2 
 

Reasons for Recommendations: 

These plans were approved by Full Council on 1 March 2013. As such, the Health 
and Wellbeing Board is asked not to approve or endorse them, but to support 
Sheffield City Council in its work, and to work together in 2013-14 to help influence 
the budget setting process for 2014-15 and beyond. 

 

Background Papers: 
Sheffield City Council 2013-14 Revenue Budget and Capital Programme, presented 
to Full Council on 1 March 2013 and available to download at 
http://meetings.sheffield.gov.uk/council-meetings/full-council/agendas-2013/agenda-
1st-march-2013-budget.

Page 18



3 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL’S HEALTH AND WELLBEING COMMISSIONING 
PLANS 2013-14 
 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1. Sheffield City Council approved the 2013-14 revenue budget and capital 
programme for Sheffield at their Full Council meeting on 1 March 2013. 
These plans summarise the Council’s commissioning intentions in a number 
of areas of interest to the Health and Wellbeing Board, and provide specific 
detail on the investments and savings the Council plans to make during 
2013/14. They are therefore being presented for comment and discussion by 
the Board.  

1.2. The outcomes of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy have strongly 
influenced the overall shape of the budget, both in areas with traditionally 
strong relationships with the health system (such as social care), but also 
areas that have a part to play in tackling the wider determinants of health and 
wellbeing (such as housing). 

1.3. The Council’s budget plans for 2013-14 can be viewed in full on the Council’s 
website at http://meetings.sheffield.gov.uk/council-meetings/full-
council/agendas-2013/agenda-1st-march-2013-budget, and with additional 
explanation at https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/your-city-council/finance/2013-
2014-budget.html. This report provides a summary overview of the Council’s 
approach. 

2. WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 

2.1.  With a budget of over £1 billion, Sheffield City Council helps to deliver a 
range of outcomes for the people of the city; ensuring that every child and 
young person is successful, supporting a competitive, thriving, 
environmentally sustainable and economically successful city; helping to 
tackle poverty and increase social justice; working with partners to ensure the 
city is safe and secure for all; making sure that all areas of the city are great 
places to live; and working with a range of partners to deliver better health 
and wellbeing. 

2.2. It is important, particularly in the current economic climate, that Sheffield City 
Council spends its money effectively, efficiently and with a targeted approach. 
The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, based on the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment, sets out the key priorities for the health and wellbeing of 
Sheffield people. This report, based on the revenue budget for 2013-14, sets 
out how Sheffield City Council’s spending will help to improve Sheffield 
peoples’ health and wellbeing. 

3. OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 

3.1. This is a budget for the financial year 2013-14. However, despite the 
challenges of the Council’s budgetary situation and the national economic 
climate, Sheffield City Council endeavours to have a longer-term financial 
strategy and approach to planning for health and wellbeing in the city. 

Page 19



4 
 

3.2. Many of the Council’s plans have a preventative approach at their heart, 
which means focussing on how we can prevent ill health and wellbeing in the 
future by targeting positive spending today. This will help to change the health 
and wellbeing system in Sheffield so that it is increasingly sustainable in the 
long-run. 

4. MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 

 Introduction 

4.1. Health and Wellbeing Boards are a statutory partnership between local 
authorities, local clinical commissioning groups, and a local Healthwatch 
organisation. The Health and Wellbeing Board has the power to comment on 
a clinical commissioning group’s commissioning plans to ensure that they are 
in line with the priorities of the Board as set out in the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. 

4.2. The Health and Wellbeing Board has a statutory duty to review the CCG’s 
commissioning plans. However, the local authority also makes a significant 
contribution to the leadership of the health and wellbeing of the city, and 
commissions a range of services itself (including from 1 April 2013, public 
health services). Therefore, it is important that the Health and Wellbeing 
Board also has an opportunity to review and comment upon Sheffield City 
Council’s plans for the next year.  

4.3. Submitting the Council’s plans for comment in April 2013 is too late to impact 
the current financial year. However, it does give the Health and Wellbeing 
Board the opportunity, at its first official public meeting, to set out clearly its 
intention to guide, comment on and monitor the plans of both the CCG and 
the Council over the coming months and years. This report provides a 
summary overview of the Council’s approach. However, full plans are 
available on the Council’s website. 

4.4. Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board will note that the Council’s 
budget is under significant financial pressure, as a result of Government cuts, 
and the budget includes savings of around £50m from its revenue spend. 
Although front line services and services that support the most vulnerable are 
relatively protected compared to other spend, some of the reductions will be 
felt in areas of interest to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

The role of Sheffield City Council on the Health and Wellbeing Board 

4.5. Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board includes eight representatives from 
Sheffield City Council. This includes a mixture of democratically accountable 
elected Councillors and a number of executive officers of the Council. These 
members are: 

§ Councillor Julie Dore, Leader of the Council and Co-Chair of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

§ Councillor Jackie Drayton, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People 
and Families. 

§ Councillor Harry Harpham, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Homes and Neighbourhoods. 

Page 20



5 
 

§ Councillor Mary Lea, Cabinet Member for Health, Care and Independent 
Living. 

§ John Mothersole, Chief Executive.  
§ Jayne Ludlam, Executive Director of Children, Young People and Families 

Services. 
§ Richard Webb, Executive Director of Communities. 
§ Jeremy Wight, Director of Public Health. 

4.6. The Council has a contribution to make to each of the outcomes set out in the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. Clearly, one of the Council’s strengths is 
its ability to affect the wider determinants of health and wellbeing, across 
areas such as leisure services, support to voluntary sector organisations, 
provision of benefits and welfare support, education and protecting vulnerable 
children, skills, employment and economic growth. The priorities the Council 
has used are identified below: 

Sheffield City Council revenue budget’s priorities 

4.7. The Council has set out clear priorities in its medium-term plan ‘Standing up 
for Sheffield’ and these priorities have been with the public. The Council’s 
budget is very much driven by these priorities, which can be summarised as: 

§ Keeping the city’s economy moving forward. 
§ Protecting those that most need our care and support. 

4.8. The proposals that were formally put to the Council’s Cabinet and Council in 
February and March 2013 are clearly influenced by these priorities. These 
priorities also fit very clearly with the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, which 
recognises the importance of the wider socio-economic determinants of 
health and wellbeing, and tackling health inequalities. 

4.9. The Council’s priorities mean that its contribution to social care services in the 
city will reduce by between 4% and 5% this financial year – about half the 
reduction being made to the budgets of other services. The Council is 
prioritising social care services because they protect those that most need our 
help and support. The savings made in social care result mainly from 
continued efforts to deliver services differently, focus on prevention, and find 
more efficient ways of working. This is again very much in keeping with the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

4.10. Prioritising major areas of spending like social care does mean that other 
service budgets have to find a bigger share of the savings. Over the coming 
years this will become an even greater challenge as funding continues to be 
cut whilst demand for social care increases as a result of social and 
demographic change (e.g. the city’s ageing population). 

4.11. The Council’s spending plans seek to promote independence by working hard 
with people who are at risk of declining health. The Council will also help 
communities and individuals to help themselves and each other. 

4.12. The Council will continue to have a particular focus on those at risk of harm – 
keeping a close watch on those most at risk. The Council also recognises the 
valuable role that carers play in helping people to live in their own homes and 
we will continue to support them. 

Page 21



6 
 

Links to the Health and Wellbeing Board’s work 

4.13. In line with the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Council wants 
Sheffield to be an inclusive city where everyone enjoys the best possible 
physical and emotional health and wellbeing.  The Council wants to help 
individuals, families, and communities make positive lifestyle choices and play 
an active role in looking after and supporting themselves and others. 

4.14. The Council’s budget is therefore predicated on working closely with Health 
and Wellbeing Board partners, particularly in the NHS, to make sure that 
everyone gets the right care at the right time, which will include providing 
more care and health services in people’s homes. 

4.15. The Council will make sure its services are effective and good value for 
money, provided by an innovative, efficient and high quality market of public, 
private and Voluntary, Community and Faith sector providers. 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

5.1. That the Health and Wellbeing Board supports the work done by Sheffield 
City Council to contribute to the outcomes and priorities of the Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy in 2013-14 and into 2014-15. 

6. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1.  These plans were approved by Full Council on 1 March 2013. As such, the 
Health and Wellbeing Board is asked not to approve or endorse them, but to 
support Sheffield City Council in its work, and to work together in 2013-14 to 
help influence the budget setting process for 2014-15 and beyond. 

 

Page 22



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   Ian Atkinson, Chief Officer, NHS Sheffield CCG 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    25 April 2013 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   NHS Sheffield CCG Commissioning Intentions 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Tim Furness, Chief of Business Planning and 

Partnerships, NHS Sheffield CCG 
______________________________________________________________ 
Summary:  
NHS Sheffield CCG’s commissioning intentions were approved by its Governing 
Body on 4th April 2013, in the form of the attached document.  They represent the 
CCG’s plans for 2013/14, intended to make progress on the CCG’s four priority aims, 
described in the document.  The plans were developed by the clinical leaders in the 
CCG, with suggestions from around 30 practices.  The plans were discussed by the 
shadow Health and Wellbeing Board in December 2012.  The document describes, 
at page 6, how these plans contribute to the outcomes the Health and Wellbeing 
Board wishes to achieve. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
Recommendations: 
That the Health and Wellbeing Board notes the CCG’s plans for 2013/14 and the 
contribution they will make to the outcomes described in the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

6b 

Page 23



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 2 

 
 
 
 

 
Commissioning Intentions 

2013/14 
 
Contents 
 
Section Page 

Executive Summary 2 

1. Introduction and Context 5 

2. How our Commissioning Intentions Contribute to 
the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

6 

3. How Our Commissioning Intentions have been 
developed 

7 

4. Commissioning intentions by Portfolio 8 

5. Achieving Our Intentions 15 

6. Financial Overview 21 

  

Appendix 1. Summary of Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment for Sheffield 

26 

Appendix 2. Practice Suggestions 31 

Appendix 3. National Pledges 32 

Appendix 4. 2013/14 Allocations as announced on 18 
December 2012 

35 

Appendix 5. Equalities Impact Assessment 37 

Page 24



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 3 

Executive Summary 
 
1. Our prospectus sets out four aims: 

1. To improve patient experience and access to care 
2. To improve the quality and equality of healthcare in Sheffield 
3. To work with Sheffield City Council to continue to reduce health 

inequalities in Sheffield 
4. To ensure there is a sustainable, affordable healthcare system in Sheffield 

 
2. To achieve these aims, we intend to achieve a major shift in care to a 

community setting, working with our current and potential providers to 
establish properly funded primary care and community based services to 

§ Transform the way outpatient services are used 
§ Reduce emergency admissions and the average length of stay for 

people who do need a hospital bed, and  
§ Redesign mental health services. 

These changes will improve the quality of care and patient experience, and 
release resources to invest in quality improvements and actions to reduce 
health inequalities. 

 
3 Actions include: 

o Increasing provision of intermediate care, to provide an alternative to 
hospital care and support timely discharge from hospital 

o Expanding community nursing, reviewing and revising the specification, to 
ensure services are fit for purpose 

o Integrating community services to provide better care to patients 
o Commissioning risk stratification and care planning in primary care 
o Resourcing primary care providers to provide enhanced care management, 

including shared care models of delivery, in agreed clinical areas  
o Supporting people to manage their health and long term conditions 
o Reducing unwarranted variation in the quality of care  
o Establishing simpler urgent care systems, reducing use of A&E for 

problems that could be managed elsewhere 
o Ensuring NHS111 is implemented and fully integrated into our urgent care 

systems 
o finalising plans to tackle inequalities in access to healthcare and to reduce 

inequalities in health 
 
4 Despite the challenging financial context we intend to invest in mandatory 

requirements such as: 
o Responding to the requirements and recommendations of the Mid 

Staffordshire Hospital and Winterbourne View inquiries 
o Establishing an autism service 
o Implementing NHS 111 

Page 25



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 4 

And we aim to release resources to invest in local priorities, including: 
o Self-care programmes such as community Health Trainers 
o Speech and language therapy services for children 
o Improving services for managing the complications of cancer treatment 
o Implementing planned improvements to end of life care 
o Improving the physical health of people with LD 
o Ensuring good transition from children’s to adult mental health care 
o Targeted screening for TB and Hepatitis B 

 
5 In addition to these service specific areas of action, we will be finalising our 

plans to tackle inequalities in access to healthcare and to reduce inequalities 
in health, which will include seeking providers’ commitment to actions through 
our partnership with purpose agreements and contractual routes. 

 
6. We will use the CCG Outcome indicators and wider benchmarking information 

to help us focus our efforts and ensure that change improves patient 
outcomes.  We have been asked by the NHS Commissioning Board to identify 
three local priorities on which we will make specified improvements and have 
chosen to submit the following as local priorities: 
o Reduction in emergency admissions for ambulatory care sensitive 

conditions 
o Alternative service provision to current hospital outpatient attendance 
o Reduction in waiting times for children’s Speech and Language Therapy 

 
7. In implementing all these actions in 2013/14, we will see changes in the way 

we use our recurrent funding compared to 2012/13. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 26



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
  

P
a

g
e

 5
 

O
u

r 
P

la
n

 o
n

 a
 P

ag
e

 

 O
u

r 
V

is
io

n
  a

n
d

 
V

al
u

es
 

 
A

u
th

o
ri

sa
ti

o
n

 
p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 c
o

n
te

xt
 

an
d

  s
ca

le
 o

f 
ch

al
le

n
g

e 
 

P
at

ie
n

t 
sa

fe
ty

 
an

d
 q

u
al

it
y 

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 

 

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
al

 c
h

an
g

e 
13

/1
4 

20
15

-1
7 

“
E

n
d

 S
ta

te
”
 A

m
b

it
io

n
 

 

  A
u

th
o

ri
se

d
  

C
lin

ic
al

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 

 

Four priority aims: 

· To improve experience and access to care; 

· To improve the quality and equity of healthcare in Sheffield; 

· To work with Sheffield City Council to continue to reduce health inequalities in Sheffield 

· To ensure there is a sustainable, affordable health care system in Sheffield. 

  
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e:

 
  S

ou
nd

 
cu

st
od

ia
ns

 o
f 

he
al

th
ca

re
 

bu
dg

et
 

  P
at

ie
nt

s 
at

 h
ea

rt
 

of
 a

ll 
de

ci
si

on
s 

  E
m

po
w

er
ed

 
cl

in
ic

al
 le

ad
er

s 
cr

ea
tin

g 
an

  
in

no
va

tiv
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

cu
ltu

re
 

  B
es

t p
os

si
bl

e 
he

al
th

; h
ig

he
st

 
qu

al
ity

 h
ea

lth
 

ca
re

 
  E

vi
de

nc
e 

ba
se

d 
ca

re
 m

ee
tin

g 
in

di
vi

du
al

 n
ee

d 
  D

el
iv

er
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
 

O
ne

 C
C

G
, w

ith
 4

 
st

ro
ng

 L
oc

al
iti

es
.  

 
 A

ge
in

g 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

(7
5+

) 
&

 u
nw

ar
ra

nt
ed

 
cl

in
ic

al
 v

ar
ia

tio
n.

 

 H
ig

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

ra
te

 o
f e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ad

m
is

si
on

s,
 le

ng
th

 
of

 s
ta

y 
&

 C
H

C
 

sp
en

d.
 

 H
ea

lth
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
se

xe
s 

&
 

m
in

or
ity

 g
ro

up
s 

  C
C

G
 w

ill
 r

em
ai

n 
w

ith
in

 it
s 

£1
4.

1m
 

R
C

A
 

 D
el

iv
er

 1
%

(6
.9

m
) 

su
rp

lu
s 

on
 £

69
1m

 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

a 
  

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 in

cr
ea

se
 

on
 P

C
T

’s
 £

0.
5 

m
 

su
rp

lu
s 

in
 2

01
2/

13
 

 20
13

-2
01

4 
Q

IP
P

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 
de

liv
er

 £
7m

 N
E

T
 

sa
vi

ng
s.

 
 Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

 o
f t

he
 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 fi
fth

 
of

 o
ur

 p
op

ul
at

io
n,

 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

he
al

th
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s.
 

 
 D

ev
el

op
 C

C
G

 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
  Im

pr
ov

ed
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 a
id

 
pa

tie
nt

 c
ho

ic
e.

 
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 

ev
id

en
ce

 
ba

se
d 

pa
th

w
ay

s 
&

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
  S

up
po

rt
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

  N
IC

E
 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

  C
le

ar
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 
pa

th
w

ay
; 

ai
di

ng
 

de
te

ct
io

n 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 p
at

ie
nt

’s
 w

it 
de

m
en

tia
.  

 S
up

po
rt

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 F

am
ily

 
an

d 
F

rie
nd

s 
T

es
t. 

 W
or

k 
w

ith
 

N
H

S
C

B
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
qu

al
ity

 
of

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 
de

liv
er

 k
ey

 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 
 E

ns
ur

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 
re

qu
ire

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

ag
ai

ns
t e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
5 

do
m

ai
ns

 o
f 

na
tio

na
lly

 
as

se
ss

ed
 

m
ea

su
re

s.
   

 E
ns

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 o

ur
 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
. 

 
 W

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
en

su
re

 a
ll 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 

rig
ht

s 
an

d 
pl

ed
ge

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

N
H

S
 

C
on

st
itu

tio
n 

ar
e 

m
et

.  
 

Acute Elective 

care 

B
ui

ld
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 c

ap
ab

ili
ty

 in
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

ca
re

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y.

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

 O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 O
pt

im
is

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 h

os
pi

ta
l b

as
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
pl

an
ne

d/
el

ec
tiv

e 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
. 

M
ak

e 
be

st
 u

se
 d

ig
ita

l t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

to
 

tr
an

sf
or

m
 m

od
el

s 
of

 p
at

ie
nt

 c
ar

e 
de

liv
er

y.
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 
m

od
el

 w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t e

xp
er

tis
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
ca

re
 le

d 
pa

tie
nt

 c
ar

e 
A

ll 
pa

tie
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
lin

ic
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 a
n 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
ba

si
s 

at
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

po
in

t o
f t

he
ir 

cl
in

ic
al

 c
on

di
tio

n 
/ p

re
se

nt
at

io
n.

 
O

pt
im

is
e 

us
e 

of
 IT

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 o

ut
 o

f h
os

pi
ta

l 
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 c
lin

ic
al

 s
ur

ve
ill

an
ce

 m
od

el
s 

S
tr

on
g 

cl
in

ic
al

 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

, w
id

e 
cl

in
ic

al
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t. 

 P
at

ie
nt

s 
an

d 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
re

 
en

ab
le

d 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

vo
ic

e 
an

d 
to

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
C

G
 

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t 
C

C
G

 o
f 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

ar
ea

. 
 C

re
at

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 
he

ad
ro

om
 

th
ro

ug
h 

Q
IP

P
 to

 
su

pp
or

t s
ys

te
m

 
w

id
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

 
 A

lig
ne

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
w

hi
ch

 
en

ab
le

 s
ha

rin
g 

of
 

pa
tie

nt
 le

ve
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 h

ea
lth

 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e
 

 S
tr

en
gt

he
ne

d 
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
, 

co
lla

bo
ra

tiv
e 

ac
tio

n 
an

d 
 

C
o-

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g.

 
 

Acute Urgent 

Care 

IC
T

s 
de

liv
er

in
g 

su
pp

or
te

d 
se

lf 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
 c

ar
e.

 
S

tr
ea

m
lin

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
e 

de
la

ye
d 

tr
an

sf
er

s 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
l; 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ca
re

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

em
en

tia
 in

 
ho

sp
ita

l w
ith

 a
cu

te
 m

ed
ic

al
 n

ee
ds

. E
st

ab
lis

h 
si

ng
le

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 c

ar
e 

pa
th

w
ay

 

R
ed

uc
ed

 h
os

pi
ta

l b
as

ed
 c

ap
ac

ity
. I

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 T
ea

m
s 

an
d 

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 C
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

e 
ur

ge
nt

 c
ar

e 
pr

oa
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 a
vo

id
 

am
bu

la
to

ry
 c

ar
e 

se
ns

iti
ve

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 th

at
 d

o 
no

t 
re

qu
ire

 h
os

pi
ta

l a
dm

is
si

on
. 

S
tr

ea
m

lin
ed

 ‘f
ro

nt
 d

oo
r’ 

ur
ge

nt
 c

ar
e 

re
sp

on
se

  
m

an
ag

es
 p

rim
ar

y 
ur

ge
nt

 c
ar

e 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 A

+
E

 

Long Term 

Conditions 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 

tie
re

d 
m

od
el

s 
of

 r
is

k 
st

ra
tif

ie
d 

LT
C

 c
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
od

el
s 

of
 m

ul
ti-

m
or

bi
di

ty
. 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 g
en

er
ic

 s
el

f-
ca

re
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 

of
 c

ar
e.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t p

la
nn

ed
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 e
nd

 o
f 

lif
e 

ca
re

. 

R
is

k 
st

ra
tif

ie
d 

m
ul

ti 
m

or
bi

d 
LT

C
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
en

ab
le

d 
to

 s
el

f c
ar

e.
  A

ct
iv

el
y 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 c

ar
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ca
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
sh

ar
ed

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g;
 m

ax
im

um
 u

se
 o

f a
ss

is
tiv

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.  
In

cr
ea

se
d 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
os

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
in

g 
en

d 
of

 li
fe

, a
dv

an
ce

 c
ar

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 d
ea

th
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 h

os
pi

ta
l. 

Children and 

Young People 
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
ca

se
 fo

r 
ch

an
ge

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
m

in
or

 
ill

ne
ss

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f A

&
E

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

 
D

ev
el

op
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 p
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
D

ev
el

op
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
ra

ns
iti

on
 o

f c
ar

e 
fr

om
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
to

 a
du

lt 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 S
pe

ec
h 

an
d 

La
ng

ua
ge

 
T

he
ra

py
 a

nd
 to

 M
H

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
16

-1
7 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s.
  

D
ev

el
op

ed
 p

at
hw

ay
s 

of
 c

ar
e 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

on
 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
to

 b
e 

m
an

ag
ed

 o
ut

 o
f h

os
pi

ta
l. 

D
ev

el
op

ed
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 s
up

po
rt

 te
am

s.
 

S
ea

m
le

ss
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

of
 c

ar
e 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 a

du
lts

. 
E

qu
ita

bl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

Mental health and 

disabilities 

R
ec

on
fig

ur
at

io
n 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 M
H

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

m
pl

et
eA

cu
te

 c
ar

e 
re

de
si

gn
 u

nd
er

w
ay

, 
m

in
im

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 o
ut

 o
f t

ow
n 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
Im

pr
ov

ed
 c

ar
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

LD
, c

om
pl

et
in

g 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t o
f l

oc
al

 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 c
om

pl
ex

 
ne

ed
sC

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ut
is

m
 s

er
vi

ce
 

F
ew

 o
ut

 o
f t

ow
n 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 M
H

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 L

D
. 

P
hy

si
ca

l h
ea

lth
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 M
H

 a
nd

 L
D

 
im

pr
ov

ed
. 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 M

H
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

ps
yc

ho
lo

gi
ca

l 
th

er
ap

ie
s;

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 c
om

m
un

ity
 b

as
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
M

H
 P

bR
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

in
 fo

cu
ss

in
g 

on
 o

ut
co

m
es

 

 

Clinical Quality and 
Improvement 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 -
 M

id
 

S
ta

ffo
rd

sh
ire

 H
os

pi
ta

l p
ub

lic
 in

qu
iry

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 s
ys

te
m

. 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 D

H
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

in
to

 a
bu

se
 a

t W
in

te
rb

ou
rn

e 
V

ie
w

. 
R

ed
uc

e 
C

 D
iff

ic
ile

 c
as

es
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 n

ew
 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

M
R

S
A

/E
 c

ol
i. 

M
ed

ic
in

es
 o

pt
im

is
at

io
n 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
. 

E
ns

ur
e 

pa
tie

nt
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 in

fo
rm

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

nd
 F

F
T

 is
 e

m
be

dd
ed

. 

S
he

ffi
el

d 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
C

G
 a

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 
w

ith
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fr

om
 n

at
io

na
l i

nq
ui

rie
s 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f c
ar

e 
is

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
 H

os
pi

ta
ls

 w
ill

 r
ed

uc
e 

ca
se

s 
of

 H
C

A
I y

ea
r 

on
 

ye
ar

. 
S

ys
te

m
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
m

ed
ic

in
es

 s
af

et
y 

ar
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
le

ss
on

s 
ar

e 
le

ar
ne

d 
fr

om
 in

ci
de

nt
s.

 
P

at
ie

nt
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 is

 p
ro

ac
tiv

e 
in

 e
ffe

ct
in

g 
de

m
on

st
ra

bl
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

Page 27



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 6 

1. Introduction and Context 
 

1.1 Our prospectus sets out four aims: 

· To improve patient experience and access to care 

· To improve the quality and equality of healthcare in Sheffield 

· To work with Sheffield City Council to continue to reduce health 
inequalities in Sheffield 

· To ensure there is a sustainable, affordable healthcare system in 
Sheffield 

 

1.2 2013/14 is the first year of operation for the CCG.  This document 
describes NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG) priorities 
for action for 2013/14, as the first steps to achieving our strategic aims, as 
described in our prospectus, published in January 2012, and in our five 
year strategy (to be published in Spring 2013).  They will contribute to 
achieving the aims of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, published 
in December 2012.   

 

1.3 Its primary purpose is to share our intentions with providers of healthcare, 
with partner organisations in the city, and with the public we serve.  These 
intentions will inform our contract negotiations and our detailed business 
planning for next year. 

 

1.4 Our planning is based on the proposals put forward by the CCG member 
practices and by the clinical portfolio holders within the CCG management 
structure.  Actions will be achieved through investment and 
decommissioning, through contract negotiation, and through the work of 
our staff either directly employed by us or through our SLA with the 
Commissioning Support Unit.  Where investment and/or decommissioning 
is planned, specific plans and business cases will be developed to support 
decision making, to ensure that intended benefits can be realised and that 
the most cost effective solutions are adopted. 

 

1.5 Our planning takes place in the context of significant national economic 
challenges, which of course influences the funding available to the NHS, 
and major change within the NHS, of which the establishment of CCGs in 
April 2013 is just one part. 

 

1.6 Within the allocations for the NHS in 2013/14, CCGs receive a cash uplift 
of 2.3% (marginally above the current inflation rate).  This increase must 
cover price rises outside of NHS contracts, growth in demand for services, 
funding of nationally mandated services, and local quality requirements.  
As set out in section 7 of this document, the cash uplift is not sufficient to 
meet all these requirements and, in addition to the general efficiency 
requirement upon providers, we will need to achieve £5.5m of savings.  
This document describes how these savings will be achieved, through 
changing the way some elements of care are delivered and ensuring our 
prescribing and referral to hospital are as clinically and cost effective as 
possible. 

 

Page 28



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 7 

1.7 There is a nationally set price change for all providers – fixed in national 
tariffs and expected to be applied in local pricing – of minus 1.3%, which is 
based on a 4% efficiency improvement and 2.7% inflation.  We will apply 
this to all our contracts, except where indicated in section 5. 

Page 29



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 8 

2. How our Commissioning Intentions Contribute to the Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy 

 
Outcome 1 – Sheffield is a healthy and successful city 
This outcome is largely about tackling the wider determinants of health and 
wellbeing.  The commissioning actions of the CCG will not specifically 
contribute to these, as we focus on the immediate causes of ill-health, and on 
treatment and care for people with health problems.  Our sustainability work 
will contribute to tackling some of the environmental factors that affect 
people’s health. 
 

Outcome 2 – Health and wellbeing is improving 
This is focused on on-going, shorter term improvements in health and 
wellbeing.  The actions described in this document are all intended to improve 
health, focussing on prevention of health crises, of improved quality of care 
and patient experience, and on improved clinical outcomes. 
 

Outcome 3 – Health inequalities are reducing 
This outcome focuses on those people and communities who experience the 
poorest health and wellbeing.  We think these commissioning intentions will 
contribute by seeking to improve the physical health of people with Learning 
Disabilities and mental health problems, who on average have a much 
shorter life expectancy than the population as a whole, by establishing more 
self-care programmes, such as health trainers, focussing on areas and 
populations with the worst health outcomes, and by establishing locally based 
services that will be more accessible and responsive to the needs of the 
populations they serve. 
 

Outcome 4 – People get the help and support they need and is right for them 
The improvements in quality, patient experience and accessibility that we 
seek will all contribute to this outcome. 
 

Outcome 5 – Services are innovative, affordable and deliver value for money 
Our plans are intended to ensure better quality and reduced health inequality 
whilst at the same time delivering improvements in the efficiency and 
effectiveness of care, with a specific aim of releasing enough resource to 
allow new investment where it is needed, within the financial plan outlined in 
this document. 

 

An earlier draft of these commissioning intentions was discussed by the 
shadow Health and Wellbeing Board on 20th December 2012.  The 
contribution to the outcomes set out in the Joint Health and Wellbeing 
strategy was recognised.  In addition, it was agreed that the two organisations 
need to do more detailed work to understand the scope for joint work and the 
impact on each other’s services, that there should be more co-commissioner 
discussion in relation to Right First Time and Future Shape Children’s Health, 
and that the current joint commissioning groups should be the means of 
having those discussions. 

 

Fairness Commission 

Page 30



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 9 

The CCG Governing Body has considered the report of the Fairness 
Commission.  We fully support the recommendations in the plan and believe 
that our plans are in line with them.  We shall work with partners, including at 
the Health and Wellbeing Board, to contribute to making Sheffield a fairer city. 

Page 31



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 10 

3. How Our Commissioning Intentions have been developed 
 
3.1 The CCG has established clinical leadership across a number of areas of 

healthcare, with GP members of the Governing Body and Commissioning 
Executive Team leading commissioning work in Acute Care (Elective and 
Unscheduled), Long Term Conditions and Cancer, Children and Young 
People and Mental Health and Learning Disabilities.  These portfolios 
holders, with the support of senior managers, have each put forward 
proposals for action in 2013/14, which have been considered by the 
Governing Body and prioritised for action based on criteria including 
benefit to patients, contribution to the CCG objectives and practicality. 

 
3.2 We have considered the health needs of our population through advice 

received by our Governing Body (attached at Appendix 1) and through our 
work with the Health and Wellbeing Board, which has commissioned a 
refresh of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment to support the 
development of Sheffield’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  The key 
issues from this analysis are: 

· Sheffield’s population has a lower life expectancy than the national 
average 

· There are significant differentials in life expectancy between the most 
deprived and least deprived parts of the city 

· Public health priorities to increase life expectancy and reduce health 
inequalities are 

o Child and maternal health 
o Long term conditions (cardiovascular disease, chronic 

obstructive pulmonary disease and diabetes) 
o Mental health and wellbeing and 
o Healthy lifestyles. 

 
In addition to that analysis, we will continue to make cancer prevention 
and treatment a priority area of work, reflecting the fact that under 75 
mortality rates from cancer are worse in Sheffield than in most of our 
comparator cities. 

 
3.3 Around 30 practices submitted proposals to the CCG.  In the main, these 

have been included within the proposals put forward in each of the clinical 
areas.   A summary of practice responses and how they are being taken 
forward is shown at Appendix 2. 

 
3.4 Recognising that clinical quality issues often cover some or all of the 

clinical areas identified above, we have identified priorities for quality 
improvement separately to the portfolios, and describe these separately 
below. 

 
 

Page 32



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 11 

4. Commissioning Intentions by Portfolio 
 
4.1 Acute Elective Care 
We aim to change the way elective care, specialist advice, diagnosis and 
treatment is provided in Sheffield so that, wherever clinically appropriate, patients 
receive the majority of their planned care in general practices or locally based 
specialist services.  We will, through our contracts, ensure there is sufficient 
resource to do this.  Patients will continue to have rapid access to specialist 
services and expertise in hospital where they and their GP agree that is needed. 
 
Our ambition, informed by clinical analysis of current patterns of outpatient 
attendance and supported by comparative benchmarking information, is to 
reduce the number of hospital based first outpatient attendances by 40% and the 
number of hospital based follow up attendances by 80% by 2016.  As a first step 
to achieving that, in 2013/14 we will, in selected specialties, reduce hospital 
based first attendances by 5% and hospital based follow up attendances by 7%, 
releasing £1.7m gross savings in year, of which half will be reinvested in 
alternative provision. 
 
We will do this by continuing to work with secondary care specialists to design 
the best care pathways, and supporting general practices to work together to 
utilise specialist skills and to enhance the skills practices have. Where it is both 
clinically and cost effective to do so we will provide more specialist services in a 
community setting, agreeing protocols to discharge patients back to their GPs for 
on-going care for follow up of many conditions, through modern technology, 
implementing alternative methods of remote monitoring of patients, and 
commissioning new services to meet patients’ needs. 
 
We will invest in primary care and community services to support this, funded by 
the release of resources achieved by reducing the use of hospital services.  We 
will work with the FTs and with primary care providers to ensure that this transfer 
of resource is achievable and does not destabilise organisations. 
 
These changes should result in a net saving, after the above investment, which 
will be used to pay for anticipated growth in demand for some services and the 
quality improvements described later on in this document. 
 
Specific actions planned to support achievement of the above include: 

§ Implementing a range of Referral Education and Support initiatives 
§ Implementing a systematic review of care pathways, to make the best use 

of hospital services and specifying where primary care provision is 
required 

§ Resourcing primary care providers to provide enhanced care 
management, including shared care models of delivery, in agreed clinical 
areas  

§ Commissioning only clinically useful outpatient follow-up, establishing 
pathways with specified hospital attendances and agreed GP follow-up. 

§ Establishing Inter-Practice referrals for specific patient treatments 
§ Developing community alternatives to hospital attendance 

Page 33



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 12 

§ Making best use digital technology to transform how we provide care, 
including electronic transfer of referrals and the summary care record 

§ Exploring clinical areas where benchmarking suggests Sheffield is an 
outlier, to establish scope for improvement, e.g. cancer, upper GI, 
infectious diseases 

Page 34



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 13 

4.2 Acute Unscheduled Care 
Our ambition to transform urgent care, shared with our partners in the health and 
social care system in Sheffield, has been previously expressed through the Right 
First Time (RFT) programme.  This seeks to ensure that patients are treated and 
supported as well as possible when they need urgent care, at home wherever 
possible, with hospital stays no longer than necessary.  This will help people, 
especially older people, recover as quickly as possible and remain independent. 
 
During 2012/13 we started to secure benefits from the RFT programme but these 
must be realised on a much more significant scale in 2013/14.  We will work with 
partners through RFT to ensure that care is supported in the most appropriate 
setting with a move in resources to support that.  This will increase resourcing of 
primary and community health and social care funded by reduced capacity and 
activity in the secondary care setting. 
 
Based on detailed modelling of the needs of our population, the RFT programme 
has estimated that, over three to five years, provided the right alternative 
services are put in place and the appropriate clinical, managerial and patient 
behavioural and culture changes take place, the impact on hospital activity could 
be: 

§ The number of emergency admissions could reduce from around 54,000 
per year to between 38,000 and 45,000 

§ The effect of reduced emergency admissions and shorter lengths of stay 
equates to a reduction in emergency beds from 996 to between 473 and 
555  

§ Expenditure on urgent hospital care can be reduced, by avoiding 
emergency admissions, from a current figure of £116m to between £87m 
and £100m. 

§ Further resource could be freed up with reduced lengths of stay and 
reinvested in community services. 

 
The opportunity for the programme is clear.  We will work with our providers and 
partners, through the programme, to ensure that the above benefits are 
achieved.  We expect that, in 2013/14, we will move at pace to implement 
alternative services and change service pathways, and achieve a significant 
reduction in the number of emergency admissions and a consequent cost 
reduction to the CCG, and reduce lengths of stay, reducing costs to the FTs.  
 
We plan to invest significantly in the Right First Time programme in 13/14 both in 
terms of non recurrent pump priming and recurrent expansion of community 
services, adding to the substantial investment in 12/13. We expect that there will 
be net savings achieved by a shift in resource, i.e. not all of the reduced spend in 
hospital care will be directly invested in community emergency care, but an 
element will be available for quality improvements.  For 2013/14 we aim to 
release a minimum of £900k NET QIPP savings to the CCG to invest in these 
improvements and/or contribute to other cost pressures. 
 
To support these improvements we will invest in primary and community 
services, commissioning more care from practices, transferring more resource to 

Page 35



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 14 

community services, including intermediate care and District Nursing, and 
commissioning new services in community settings.  Specifically, we will: 

§ Increase provision of intermediate care, to provide an alternative to 
hospital care and support timely discharge from hospital 

§ Expand community nursing, reviewing and revising the specification, to 
ensure services are fit for purpose  

§ Integrate community services to provide better care to patients 
§ Commissioning risk stratification and care planning in primary care 
§ Ensure NHS111 is implemented and fully integrated into our urgent care 

systems 
§ Improve access to urgent care services at all times, establishing a single 

point of access to urgent care and providing GP expertise in A&E, so that 
A&E deals with genuine accidents and emergencies 

§ Supporting Primary Care providers to provide enhanced care 
management 

 
 
4.3 Long Term Conditions including End of Life Care& Cancer 
Many of the patients who most need healthcare have long term conditions.  
Improvement in the way our services are designed must be accompanied by 
changes in clinical practice, particularly for people with long term conditions, to 
help them manage their health and to reduce the number of health crises that 
might result in a need for urgent care.  Proposed actions in 2013/14, which will 
help improve people’s health and support the changes in elective and urgent 
care described in the above sections, include the following, subject to the level of 
additional resources which we can make available: 

§ Implement planned improvements to end of life care 
§ Commission generic self care programmes e.g. health trainers service, 

expert patients programme 
§ Finalise an agreed approach to shared decision making and care planning 
§ Consider options and determine a means of improving primary care 

quality and reducing unwarranted variation 
§ Commission new mental health services for people with long term 

physical conditions  
§ Review the Stroke pathway, to enable early discharge, 6 month review 

and longer intermediate care where needed 
§ Commission a specialist diagnosis & management service for Familial 

Hypercholesterolaemia 
§ Establish a latent TB community testing service 
§ Establish Hepatitis B screening for populations most at risk 
§ Implement city-wide cancer survivorship transformation programme and 

earlier awareness, earlier diagnosis of cancer 
§ Review the Care Home LES to establish a sustainable system of primary 

care for care home residents 
§ Develop a consistent approach to specifications and fees  for all non-

standard residential- care commissioned by the CCG 
§ Increase the number of personal health budgets 
§ Fully engage in the National Centre for Exercise and Sports Medicine 

which aims to improve the level of activity and fitness of Sheffield 
Residents 

Page 36



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 15 

 

Page 37



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 16 

4.4 Children and Young People 
We will continue to work with Sheffield City Council and Sheffield Children’s NHS 
FT on the “Future Shape Children’s Health” programme and, subject to the level 
of additional resources which we can make available, intend to take the following 
actions as part of the CCG’s contribution to that programme: 

§ Reduce waiting times for Speech and Language Therapy 
§ Reduce A&E attendances and unscheduled admissions at SCH 
§ Develop integrated practice in primary care and community services 
§ Improve maternity care 
§ Increase cost effectiveness and child/family experience for children with 

complex needs 
§ Review respite care services and develop proposals to improve respite 

care for children with complex medical needs.  
§ Review community equipment and improve access   
§ Ensure good transition from children’s to adult mental health care, 

including care of 16 and 17 year olds 
§ Ensure good transition from children’s to adult LD & complex needs care 
§ Improve the effectiveness of investment in CAMHS, including 

implementing Children’s IAPT 
§ Improve elective care pathways 
§ Stop commissioning procedures with limited clinical value, including 

religious circumcisions 
§ Work with partners to reduce the number of teenage pregnancies in 

Sheffield 
§ Support and influence the proposed site development at SCH 

 
 
4.5 Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 
We will continue the joint work with Sheffield Health and Social Care NHS FT on 
service redesign in community and acute mental health services, and will work 
with them to: 

§ Ensure the Acute care and Community team reconfigurations achieve the 
stated aims 

§ Implement a Personality Disorder pathway in Sheffield 
§ Review dementia intermediate care services to ensure we achieve best 

outcomes and best value 
§ Improve forensic care for people with LD 
§ Improve care for people with complex LD needs  
§ Manage the implementation of Payment by Results in MH services to 

ensure the intended quality improvements are achieved 
 
In addition, we will work with all partners to achieve the following aims: 

§ Commission Autism(+) Diagnosis and Post Diagnosis Service 
§ Continue work to deliver on the priorities within the National Dementia 

Strategy (2009) and the Prime Minister's Challenge (2012) 
§ Improve physical health and wellbeing of people with MH problems 
§ Improve physical health of people with LD 

 

Page 38



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 17 

4.6 Clinical Quality Improvement 
Priorities for our work to ensure patient safety and improve the quality of care 
experienced by our patients will include: 

§ Review and ensure appropriate recommendations from Mid Staffordshire 
Hospital public inquiry (Francis 2) across Sheffield 

§ Implement DH recommendations following the investigations of abuse at 
Winterbourne View 

§ Medicines optimisation & medicines safety 
§ Ensure compliance with national standards and guidance for cancer care, 

and reduce unwarranted variation 
§ Work with the NHS Commissioning Board Area Team to ensure continual 

improvement in primary care quality and reduce unwarranted variation 
§ Working with the Local Authority, continue to improve the quality of care in 

Care Homes 
§ Continue to reduce C Difficile cases and have zero tolerance of MRSA, 

with a new process for investigation and accountability with contract 
penalties for each recorded case. 

§ Implement more stringent safeguarding standards for adults and children 
and focus on learning lessons and outcomes of initiatives. 

§ Establish more challenging Quality Improvement Schemes, including 
CQUINS, with all providers including AWP 

§ Ensure service developments systematically take into account quality 
considerations and patient views, including learning lessons from 
complaints 

§ Work with providers to deliver the ‘duty of candour’ requirement in the 
national contract, working towards a transparent delivery of clinical 
governance. 

§ Ensure feedback from patients and carers is reviewed and action is taken 
to deliver continual improvements – this includes the implementation of 
Family and Friends Test. 

§ Ensure that electronic discharge letters to GP’s improves communication 
between primary and secondary care. 

§ Be a key player in the Yorkshire and Humber Academic Health Science 
Network (AHSN) 

§ Work with partners to ensure education and training supports 
achievement of our objectives, including the expansion of community 
based services. 

 
We will support, promote and contribute to research, working with partners to 
ensure that research supports the achievement of our ambition and that our 
practices and providers have access to the latest evidence and innovations. 
 
Ensuring patient safety and improving clinical quality is everyone’s business in 
the CCG.  Much of the work listed above will be led by the Chief Nurse and his 
team.  However, the commitment and contribution of the clinical portfolio leads 
will be critical and some aspects of work will be led by the portfolios or by the 
contract management team. 
 

Page 39



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 18 

4.7 Tackling Health Inequalities 
The CCG has agreed an outline plan setting out how we can contribute to 
reducing health inequalities in Sheffield – recognising that many of the factors 
that lead to inequalities in health outcomes are outside the influence of the NHS.  
We will be discussing our plans with partners, including at the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, to ensure that we have identified the right actions.  Our outline 
plan includes actions to: 

§ Provide high profile clinical support for national and local actions that 
reduce health inequalities, including public health interventions 

§ Support individuals to be aware of their own health and their health risks, 
and to take responsibility for their health 

§ Ensure equality of access to healthcare, targeting resources to areas and 
populations with the greatest need 

§ Commission disease specific interventions that are known to help reduce 
health inequalities 

§ Ensure compliance with the Equality Act, taking action to eliminate any 
discrimination in the provision of healthcare in Sheffield. 

 
Many of the quality improvements identified in these intentions address the 
above, in supporting individuals and in commissioning specific interventions.  
The CCG Governing Body has approved an Equalities Action plan that sets out 
action to ensure equality of access to healthcare and compliance with the 
Equality Act.  We will seek providers’ commitment to actions through our 
partnership with purpose agreements and contractual routes. 
 
 
4.8 CCG Outcomes 
The NHS Commissioning Board published comparative data for all CCGs on a 
set of outcome indicators in December 2012.  Sheffield benchmarks in line with 
or better than comparator areas for most indicators, but the data shows we have 
significantly worse outcomes in a number of areas, as set out below: 
 

§ Cardiovascular prevention in hypertension patients.  This is a QOF 
indicator and as such an element of GP contracting.  We are committed to 
working in partnership with NHS CB to support improvements in 
cardiovascular prevention. 

§ Cancer mortality.  Sheffield CCG fully understands our position on cancer 
mortality and therefore has a programme of work covering the whole 
pathway to ensure that outcomes in cancer continue to improve year on 
year.  This work is led by the Sheffield CCG GP clinical Lead for cancer 
through the Long Term Conditions and Cancer clinical portfolio.  The CCG 
is particularly committed to focussed work on earlier awareness and 
earlier diagnosis of cancer with a clear aim of improving cancer detection. 
In addition, with successful funding support from Macmillan the CCG has 
also embarked on a transformational project supporting the needs of 
cancer survivors in the community. This work is based on the principles of 
risk stratification, care planning and supported self-care and is intended to 
ensure that both patients and primary care feel supported to manage the 
needs of cancer survivors out of hospital. The CCG is also committed to 
working both in partnership and as a co-commissioner, particularly with 

Page 40



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 19 

the NHS CB on those aspects of cancer pathways where it does not have 
direct commissioning responsibility to ensure that pathways of care 
remain seamless. 

§ Hip replacement PROMS.  Sheffield CCG is fully aware of, and 
monitoring, the provider position in relation to hip replacement scores 
generated via the PROMs programme.  STH is currently undertaking a 
strategic internal review of orthopaedic services, with a particular focus on 
hip surgery.  The Trust is also liaising with the Yorkshire and Humber 
Quality Observatory looking at a number of factors in detail, including the 
patient reported hip scores (mainly the EQ5D measure), peer 
performance, rates for revision and new surgical procedures, as well as 
consultant level data.  We will continue to work with the trust to review 
progress and service quality. 

§ Child admissions for lower respiratory tract infection (LRTI) (second worst 
in England).  A review of rates of admission for Children with LRTI was 
undertaken some time ago, at that point the admissions were seen to be 
clinically appropriate.  Recent data suggests there is a huge variation on 
the admission rates for the Sheffield population, which appears to be a 
common theme in a city which hosts a Specialist Children’s Hospital.   
Further work is planned to look at the rates and the current pathway with 
our provider and develop clear guidance for the management of 
respiratory conditions for children within the community and within the 
hospital environment.  

§ C Difficile.  Significant reductions have been made in Sheffield this year, 
and Sheffield Teaching Hospitals Foundation Trust (STHFT) has recorded 
fewer cases than the annual target. Sheffield CCG has not achieved the 
end of year target, but the total numbers of cases is considerably lower 
than 2011-12.  During 2013/14 the CCG will continue to undertake a full 
review of each community case with GP’s, and manage antibiotic 
prescribing.  We will also develop more integrated working with STHFT to 
deliver on the challenging targets for acute and community for 13/14. 
Sheffield Children’s Hospital Foundation Trust did not achieve the end of 
year target and action plans are being delivered following each case 
review.  

 
 
4.9 NHS Constitution Rights and Pledges 
The CCG will work with partners and providers to ensure that all the standards, 
rights and pledges given to patients under the NHS constitution are adhered to, 
including ensuring that contractual requirements and remedies are in place.  
These include: 

§ Achieving the 18 week wait and diagnostic waiting time standards 
§ Achieving standards for maximum waiting times in cancer care 
§ Ensuring patients wait no more than four hours in A&E 
§ Achieving standards for ambulance response times 
§ Eliminating mixed sex accommodation 
§ Reducing cancellation of operations, and ensuring a new date is offered 

when operations have to be cancelled 

Page 41



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 20 

§ Ensuring all mental health inpatients on the Care Programme Approach 
are followed up within 7 days of discharge from hospital 

 
Appendix 3 sets out in full the national standards that we will achieve, describing 
the current position and, where required, the commissioning action we will take in 
2013/14 to ensure the care our patients receive meets these standards. 

Page 42



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 21 

5. Achieving Our Intentions 
 
5.1 Investing in Quality Improvement and Reducing Health Inequalities 
 
These commissioning intentions include a number of actions that will require 
investment, either to support service change and associated disinvestment 
elsewhere, or to improve current services or establish new ones to improve 
health.  (Investment proposals to support our elective and unscheduled care 
QIPP programme are discussed in section 5.2 below.)   
 
In addition, the CCG will be funding a number of developments to meet national 
expectations and statutory requirements, including establishing an Autism 
diagnosis and support service, NHS11, and implementation of the 
recommendations of the inquiries into Mid-Staffordshire Hospitals and 
Winterbourne View. 
 
The proposed discretionary investments can only be funded through the 
resources released through our elective care and urgent care work, as identified 
above.  We will not commit to investment until we are confident that the 
necessary resources will be released, and we will work with FTs and other 
providers through our collaborative change programmes and our contract 
negotiations to ensure resources are released. 
 
These proposals have been carefully considered and an order of priority agreed, 
as described in the table below.  Approval of these proposals will be subject to 
availability of resources and approval of business cases.  We intend to release 
sufficient resource to be able to progress all of these proposals, which we 
consider demonstrate significant health gain for our population. 
 

Investment agreed to be made from 1/4/2013 £k 

Generic self-care programmes, i.e. core health trainers service  200 

Increase capacity of community Lymphodema services to manage the 
complications of cancer treatment 

65 

 

Proposals for urgent consideration of business cases and investment as 
soon as resource is available 

£k 

Implement planned improvements to end of life care tbc 

Additional health trainer activity 100 

Darnall Wellbeing 25 

Expert Patients Programme 30 

Improve physical health of people with LD 120 

Ensure good transition from children’s to adult care, MH  100 

Hepatitis B screening - Roma Slovak population* 77 

Latent TB community testing service* 63 

* Subject to clarification of where commissioning responsibility lies 
 

 Proposals for consideration of business cases and investment as soon as 
second level of resource is available 

£k 

Improve care for people with complex LD needs  223 

Ensure good transition from children’s to adult LD care 140 

Ensure good transition from children’s to adult care, complex needs tbc 

Page 43



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 22 

Improve forensic care for people with LD 150 

 
 

Proposals for later consideration £k 

Commission 6 month review of people who have a stroke 90 

Review effectiveness of community services 100 

NHSI Quality programme for nursing homes 90 

Commission new MH services for people with long term physical conditions  100 

 

Statutory commitments and commitments already made £k 

Autism(+) Diagnosis and Post Diagnosis Service 500 

Reduce waiting times for Speech and Language Therapy 200 

Personal health budgets  tbc 

Implementing NHS 111 1000 

Implementing the recommendations of the Mid Staffordshire Hospital and 
Winterbourne View inquiries 

tbc 

 

 
5.2 Transfer of Care to Primary and Community Care Settings. 
 
The sum of these contracting intentions represents a major shift of care, from 
hospital to community settings, in the next twelve months.  In terms of patient 
activity, we plan to reduce outpatient attendances by 20% in selected specialties 
and commission alternative care in community settings, and to reduce 
emergency admissions, and commission preventative care and urgent primary 
and community care responses in their place. 
 
The table below shows the specific changes that we have agreed to commission: 
 
 £k £k 

Right First Time urgent care programme   

Dementia business case 100  

Single Point of Access (including  bed bureau) 400  

Integrated Care Team - Care Planning Approach 600  

Community Nursing - 7 day extended availability of core 
services 300  

Increased and Responsive CICS Service 300  

Increased and Responsive STIT Service 1000  

Intermediate Care Beds - community support 400   

  3,100 

Elective care programme   

Transfer services to primary care 25  

Advice and guidance via PPL pilot - 6 specialties 140  

Pathway advisors 160  

Education events 50  

Outpatient follow up incentive scheme 340  

Provider led efficiencies pilot in x no. of specialties 35  

Support to delivery of above 50   

  800 

Learning Disabilities complex needs service  200   

  200 

TOTAL  4,100 

Page 44



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 23 

 
The funding released is needed to fund a range of cost pressures as the cash 
uplift for the CCG for 2013/14 at 2.3% is insufficient to cover all new pressures, 
together with the other financial planning requirements such as a 1% bottom line 
surplus and  holding 2% of the CCG’s allocations for spend only on NON –
recurrent costs.  The remaining resource released to the CCG will be used for 
investment in quality improvement, as detailed above. 
 
To achieve this, we need to build upon these commissioning intentions to define 
and specify in more detail what services or patient activity will no longer be 
provided in hospital, and the services that will be commissioned to be provided 
outside of hospital.  We will need to determine the most appropriate procurement 
approach to place contracts to secure these services, and agree the impact of 
the changes on current contracts with providers.  Contractual models might 
include NHS standard contracts with new or existing providers for new 
community services, changes within current contracts to move resource to a 
community setting, and use of Local Enhanced Services to increase capacity in 
general practices. 
 
The development of GP Associations (GPAs) is critical to our success.  We will 
work with practices to support the development of GPAs as potential providers of 
care, and as a means of practices working together to share expertise and 
resources.  We are mindful of the potential conflict of interest for members of the 
CCG in the development of GPAs and will ensure that decisions are taken in the 
best interests of patients, with any conflicts of interest declared, understood and 
managed, e.g. by excluding conflicted individuals from decision making 
processes. 
 
5.3 Implications for current contracts 
 
The financial plan section provides an overview including the impact of changes 
to national PbR arrangements and the tariff for 2013/14 which again this year 
imposes a challenging 4% efficiency requirement on all providers, unless 
exceptionally agreed otherwise by the CCG. 
 

5.3.1 STH 
In relation to the acute services provided by STH, these commissioning 
intentions are expected to result in lower levels of outpatient activity, A&E 
attendances and emergency admissions, with consequent expenditure 
reductions. However, we expect to see an increase in direct access 
diagnostic activity, cost per case activity and inpatient elective activity may 
still increase (subject to the conclusion of contract negotiations) due to the 
need to deliver the 18 week national pledge by specialty. This latter will 
partly depend on referral rates. The proposed changes under RFT in 
particular should support achievement of efficiency gains at STH, for 
example by working with STH and other partners to reduce lengths of stay 
in hospital. The RFT changes should also mean an increase in the funding 
for community services provided by STH. 
 

Page 45



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 24 

We will work with STH to explore variations where appropriate from the 
standard NHS tariff arrangements, so that risk and benefit arising from 
planned changes is shared, transfer of resources enabled, and incentives 
are aligned with responsibility for delivery. 
 
We will be rigorous in using contractual and partnership agreements to 
support and ensure achievement of NHS Constitution standards, and will 
take action where there is a risk of failure to meet those standards. 

Page 46



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 25 

5.3.2 SCH 
We expect these commissioning intentions to have some impact on our 
contract with SCH, resulting in lower levels of activity in A&E, emergency 
admissions and elective care.  However, we may see an increase in direct 
access diagnostic activity, cost per case activity and elective activity may 
still increase (subject to the conclusion of contract negotiations) due to the 
need to deliver the 18 week pledge. This latter will partly depend on 
referral rates.  We will set activity levels in our contracts accordingly. 
 
We will work with SCH to explore variations where appropriate from the 
standard NHS tariff arrangements, so that risk and benefit arising from 
planned changes is shared, transfer of resources enabled, and incentives 
are aligned with responsibility for delivery. 
 
We will be rigorous in using contractual and partnership agreements to 
support and ensure achievement of NHS Constitution standards, and will 
take action where there is a risk of failure to meet those standards. 
 
5.3.3 SHSC 
These commissioning intentions, with regard to mental health and LD 
care, largely represent continuity from 2012/13 plans.  We will, subject to 
agreement of contractual terms, continue NHS Sheffield’s collaboration 
with SHSC to achieve both commissioning QIPP requirements and 
provider efficiency improvements. 
 
Where investment in mental health and LD care is proposed we will 
determine on a case by case basis whether health gain is best achieved 
through extension of existing contracts or by formal tendering processes. 
 
We will be rigorous in using contractual and partnership agreements to 
support and ensure achievement of NHS Constitution standards, and will 
take action where there is a risk of failure to meet those standards. 
 
5.3.4 VCF providers 
We intend to renew all existing contracts with VCF providers, subject to 
assurance on ability to deliver and on quality.  We will apply a nil uplift to 
the contract values, in effect waiving part of the NHS efficiency 
requirement.  There may be opportunities for VCF providers to secure 
new contracts, where services are tendered, and to develop partnership 
working with the FTs or with GPAs to jointly deliver services. 
 
5.3.5 Current Local Enhanced Services (LESs) 
During 2013/14 we will review the current LESs to ensure they represent 
the best use of resources to support delivery of care in primary care, in the 
context of the intent expressed in this document to significantly invest in 
care in community settings.  This review will consider the type of 
contractual arrangement that should be used going forward as well as the 
nature of the services commissioned. 
 

Page 47



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 26 

5.3.6 Other acute service providers 
We contract for acute care for Sheffield residents, from a range of both 
NHS and Independent sector providers mainly for elective care. The 
changes proposed under the elective QIPP programme may have an 
impact on these providers, as will patient choice.   
 
5.3.7 YAS 
For 13/14 the CCG will continue to have a contract for emergency 
ambulance services with YAS as part of a regional consortium 
arrangement in which Sheffield is taking the lead for South Yorkshire 
CCGs.  The CCG will be looking to work with partners to reduce 
inappropriate rises in demand but expects some increase in demand to 
occur in 13/14 based on previous trends. The CCG will also continue to 
purchase most patient transfer services (PTS) from YAS in 13/14 but 
some services will be from other providers and currently there is a 
procurement exercise underway for certain elements of PTS.  
 
In addition the CCG is part of regional contractual arrangements for the 
111 service. The contract was awarded to after a competitive procurement 
process to YAS earlier in 2012 and this will see an increase in funding to 
YAS from the CCG in 2013/14 with the service commencing in March 
2013.  We will work with YAS to ensure that changes following 
establishment of the 111 service do not impact on emergency response 
times 
 
5.3.8 Providers of Continuing Health Care 
The CCG expects to spend over £50m on placements for patients eligible 
for CHC funding in 2013/14. This is expected to be through the standard 
NHS community contract arrangements and the CCG expects to use a 
similar range of providers to 2012/13.  We will set fees for 2013/14 
alongside Sheffield City Council, and will apply a nil uplift to the contract 
values, in effect waiving part of the NHS efficiency requirement. 

 
5.3.9 Sheffield City Council 
Generally the CCG will be working with SCC as a co-commissioner (as 
discussed in 5.4 below) and may as a result of this, transfer resources to 
SCC e.g. through S256 or S75 arrangements. There are certain areas 
where the CCG will be transferring resources to SCC as a provider and 
this may expand depending on conclusion of the RFT programme 
proposals for 2013/14. 

 
5.4 Working with partners and co-commissioners 
 
We will work with Sheffield City Council, as co-commissioners, in implementing 
the Right First time and Future Shape Children’s Health programmes.  We will 
explore with the Council whether there are opportunities to ensure benefits of the 
change programmes are realised through pooled budgets or other arrangements 
to share responsibility and manage risk.  We will also work with the Council to 
share commissioning intentions and manage unintended consequences, e.g. 
where service change might increase demand for each other’s services, or 

Page 48



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 27 

otherwise create pressures. An important new aspect to this in 2013/14 is as the 
result of SCC taking over responsibility for a range of Public Health services from 
April 2013 following the transfer of £28.5m and a range of contracts from the 
PCT. The CCG is currently working through with SCC the impact of this change.  
 
We will work with Healthwatch, when it is established, to develop a systematic 
approach to patient and public engagement, which will include the development 
of an improved web site, ensuring there is patient and public engagement in the 
work of each of our clinical portfolios, and establishing processes that ensure 
that patient and public views are considered in every significant decision taken 
by the CCG. 
 
The NHS Commissioning Board Local Area Team will be a new co-commissioner 
for the CCG, as it will have responsibility for primary care contracts and for 
specialised services.  We will work with the Team to develop our co-
commissioning relationship and be clear about how we work together where we 
have shared interests, including the major stake we each will have in contracts 
with Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS FT and Sheffield Children’s NHS FT, and 
the in understanding respective roles with regard to primary care quality. 
 
We will work with neighbouring CCGs to collaborate on issues of joint interest, 
and have established a formal mechanism for this work with the CCGs in south 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. 
 
5.5 The work of our staff 
 
Many of our intentions are about planning, monitoring and partnership activities, 
which will be undertaken by CCG staff, most obviously in the work of service 
design and redesign, quality assurance, performance and contract management 
teams.  The CCG retained direct employment of staff for this purpose.  

 
We will also be reliant on the contribution of the Commissioning Support Unit, 
which will provide valuable support and will directly contribute to our intentions in 
continuing our excellent track record in Medicines Management and maintaining 
recent improvements in the cost effectiveness of Continuing Healthcare. 

 
5.6 Our planning and delivery business processes 
 
These commissioning intentions will form the basis of our business plan for 
2013/14.  Progress will be monitored by the Planning and Delivery Group, with 
regular monitoring of implementation and outcome of the projects put in place to 
deliver these intentions. 
 
Investment and other service changes will require approval by the 
Commissioning Executive Team and/or by the CCG Governing body, and will 
normally need written business cases to support assessment of the case for 
change, confidence in achievement of the intended benefits, and understanding 
and management of any clinical or corporate risks. 
 

Page 49



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 28 

We will develop a procurement plan for 2013/14, which will include competitive 
tendering for new services where that is appropriate, i.e. where it will help ensure 
that we achieve the best service for patients and the best value from investment. 

Page 50



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 29 

6. Financial Overview 
 
The 2013/14 financial plan has been constructed to support delivery of the 
CCG’s commissioning intentions and at the same time to meet national financial 
planning requirements.  There remain several important risks and uncertainties 
which have at this stage necessitated a number of assumptions to be made. 
Other risks, however, will remain to be managed during 2013/14 including those 
associated with splitting previous PCT resources and responsibilities between a 
range of new commissioners from April 2013. It is unlikely that there will be a 
perfect match of funding transfers and liabilities. 
 
At this stage we have identified that the CCG will need to deliver £5.5m of 
recurrent NET QIPP savings to achieve a 0.5% surplus in 2013/14 and 
demonstrate that only 98% of its resources have been spent recurrently, which is 
a national requirement.  Sheffield residents, patients and key local partners in the 
city will be interested to understand how we intend to utilise our total £690m 
commissioning resources and also how we have deployed the increase in 
funding in 2013/14. 
 
The table below provides an overview of the additional resources available to the 
CCG in 2013/14 compared to the baseline funding and how these are likely to be 
deployed. 
 
Sheffield CCG:  Use of Additional Recurrent Resources in 2013/14 

 
 

A Additional Resources available to the CCG in 2013/14 £'m 

   15.5 

  Funding available by applying the national 4% efficiency target to most contracts. NB: this 
assumes CCG sees full benefit against PbR contracts which has yet to be confirmed.   

22.4 

    37.9 

     

B Resources needed to meet underlying pressures/pre-commitments b/f from  2012/13 
and national planning requirements 

  

  The PCT will not end the year with the required underlying 2% surplus mainly due to acute 
secondary care activity pressures e.g. £6m of STH activity was funded from the 2% 
headroom reserves. In total the CCG needs to have £13.8m available for its 2013/14 
headroom budget and only £8.8m has been carried forward  representing a pressure of £5m 
against its new resources 

-5.0 

  CCGs must set aside 0.5% of baseline resources as a recurrent contingency reserve. As 
shown on summary plan - line 32 - Sheffield is unable to start the year with any such 
contingency b/f due to underlying hospital activity pressures and hence needs to create this 
contingency from its new resources 

-3.5 

  CCGs are required to invest in the implementation of 111- for Sheffield CCG the contract 
signed with YAS indicates a cost of just over £1m. NB risk of other pressures e.g. increase in 
ambulance journeys, use of A&E, GP OOHs etc 

-1.0 

  CCGs are also required to implement certain autism services and Sheffield CCG has agreed 
2 local pre-commitments: Full year impact of LIFT developments and Paediatric SALT.  

-1.7 

Page 51



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 30 

    -11.2 

C Impact of funding national inflation    

  Inflation at 2.7% non PbR and at 2.9% on PbR  -15.6 

  Thus it is important to note that contract inflation utilises ALL of the CCG cash uplift which 
means the CCG needs to use the 4% efficiency released by applying the tariff deflator to fund 
all cost pressures and national planning requirements 

  

    -15.6 

D Demand led cost pressures   

  Activity pressures including demographics, 18 weeks, cost per case, ambulance  -7.8 

  Pricing pressures including ambulance, equipment, enhanced services and PbR risk -1.5 

  CHC  - childrens and LD pressures and no tariff deflator applied -1.8 

  Prescribing - volume growth and price fluctuation -3.4 

    -14.5 

E CCG Running Cost Allowance at c£25 per population   

  Running Cost Allowance is £14,070k.  The CCG is planning to underspend this by £1m to 
contribute to commissioning expenditure and reduce QIPP requirements 

1.0 

   1.0 

F QIPP     

  Target Savings   

  Planned Investment   

  

MINIMUM NET QIPP is £5.5m - CCG is still looking to increase this by at least £1m to 
allow other local investments to proceed 5.5 

G Delivery of 0.5% surplus   

  Net of Items A to F above 3.1 

  Utilise surplus c/f from PCT - expected CCG element 0.4 

   3.5 

 

CCG Allocation 
CCG allocations for one year (2013-14) were announced on 18 December 2012 
by the NHS Commissioning Board in parallel to the planning guidance, Everyone 
Counts: Planning for Patients 2013-14.  Appendix 4 provides a summary of the 
allocations announcement. It shows that nationally NHS CB decided to use the 
information provided by PCTs as part of the baseline exercise as the starting 
point for 2013-14 allocations. The opening figure of £734m is that submitted by 
Sheffield PCT for planned spend on CCG responsibilities in 2012-13. This is 
helpful as it means locally we have a full audit trail of the individual budgets 
which build up to this figure and NHS CB used our local information. However, 
the NHS CB has then made 3 deductions from this opening position. The 
specialised services deduction at £41m is by far the largest but was expected 
because the national definition set for specialised services has changed, 
increasing the scope of these services. Further work is on-going, in conjunction 
with the local Area Team, to understand how whether the resource adjustments 
actioned to date, accurately reflect the cost of specialised services transferring to 
the NHS Commissioning Board.  The other two smaller adjustments (in total 
c£4m) represent a cost pressure compared to the local plan prepared in 
September. 
 

Page 52



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 31 

Nationally the decision was taken to provide ALL CCGs with a standard cash 
uplift of 2.3% (£15.5m for Sheffield).  This is primarily because national decisions 
on the methodology to calculate “fair share” budgets for CCGs have been 
deferred with further work required. This means that it was not possible to 
determine which CCGs were above or below their “fair share” budget and hence 
there was no rational for differential cash uplifts. This has probably benefited 
Sheffield CCG as traditionally the PCT has been an “over target” PCT and the 
formula for calculating fair shares for CCGs would probably have to be 
substantially different to change this position. 
 
Key Assumptions used for Financial Plan 
 

1. Delivery of 0.5% (£3.5m) reported surplus:  The CCG has a statutory duty 
of financial breakeven but Everyone Counts: Planning for Patients 2013-
14 requires  commissioners collectively to plan for a 1% surplus which  will 
be carry forward to future years.  Within the South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw area there has been sufficient flexibility for Sheffield CCG to 
plan on a surplus of 0.5% in 2013/14.  The CCG  made representations to 
the Area Team that to move to a 1% or £6.9m surplus represented too big 
a change from the PCT’s plan for the last 2 years of only a £0.5m surplus. 
Having over £6m resources not being available for use in the local health 
economy in 2013/14 would substantially detract from the CCG being able 
to make progress on its strategic objectives and have an adverse impact 
on our financial resilience. The CCG does, however, need to plan on 
moving to delivery of a 1% surplus in 2014/15. 
 

2. Retain 2% of baseline resources for NON recurrent expenditure (and 
hence deliver an underlying 2% surplus).  This is a national planning 
requirement for all commissioners. For Sheffield this equates to £13.8m.  
For CCGs, approval to spend the resource has to be sought from their 
local LAT through business cases. We will hold back at least 0.5% as 
contingency reserves but plan on utilising a substantial element to support 
transition costs for our QIPP programme. There are already potential pre-
commitments as part of the RFT programme. 
 

3. Create a 0.5% general contingency reserve:  This is the third national 
financial planning requirement. For Sheffield CCG this equates to £3.5m. 
It is financial “good practice” to start the year with a reserve for 
unexpected in year pressures such as those that can be created by 
exceptional winter conditions, flu pandemic, responding to national 
inquiries such Mid Staffs or Winterbourne View or of course as part of 
managing risk if planned QIPP savings are not fully delivered.  This 
reserve is similar to the £4m which Sheffield PCT built up for 2012-13.  
Should such pressures not materialise the funding can be used for local 
priority investments in year. 
 

4. Recurrent baseline opening budgets:  For each contract or service area 
the best assessment of the recurrent baseline requirements has been 
made jointly by the budget holder and finance generally using M10 data. 
This is before taking into account any full year effect of existing QIPP 

Page 53



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 32 

programmes as these will be built into the 2013/14 QIPP programme to 
allow for transparent monitoring of these savings and allow for stronger in 
year financial and risk management. Opening budgets are also before 
taking into account activity and price pressures/changes for the year 
ahead and the transformational change requirements.  
 

5. Inflation, Tariff and PbR changes:  The key assumptions are as follows: 
 
The national planning guidance and allocations indicate that the tariff has 
been calculated as follows: 
 
Inflation uplift to cover e.g. pay rises  +2.7% 
Efficiency requirement   -4.0% 
Hence net tariff    -1.3% 
 
This means the standard position is that the CCG should seek to reduce 
prices on all contracts by -1.3%. There are however a few areas of 
community services spend where the CCG may wish or need to “waive” 
this requirement.  
 
The Payment by Results (PbR) system will automatically implement the 
tariff changes for those elements of contract which fall under PbR. 
However, it is important to note that the -1.3% benefit to CCG 
commissioners which should result is a national average and may not be 
felt evenly by commissioners depending on the case mix of services 
purchased.  CCGs have also been advised to reduce their estimate of the 
benefit by 0.2% (i.e. down to 1.1%) as a result of for example the 
treatment of CNST premiums in PbR tariffs.  
 
Through the contracting process we are working through the impact of 
other elements of the PbR guidance such as the readmissions policy and 
the unbundling of tariffs for direct access diagnostics.  
 
The national planning guidance has made NO change to the level of 
CQUIN (i.e. quality) funding which providers can earn as part of 
contractual arrangements. This remains at 2.5% of total contract value for 
2013-14. The actual CQUIN measures for 2013-14 can be varied from 
prior years except for certain national requirements and will need to be 
worked through as part of the contracting arrangements.  
 
GP prescribing is the one budget line where we have applied NO price 
reduction as prices are set nationally through national negotiations or by 
individual suppliers and the CCG has no control over price setting. 2012-
13 saw some significant reductions in prices and the opening budget 
position builds this in as a recurrent benefit. This could well be a risk as 
2013-14 could see increases in say some Cat M prices and of course new 
drugs coming on the market could prove expensive. Further work is 
needed with the medicines management team to horizon scan as far as 
possible what might be required in 13/14.  A provision for growth in 
activity/price fluctuations is made within cost pressures.  

Page 54



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 33 

 
6. Underlying/Specific Activity Demand:  A critical element of the financial 

planning process is to consider possible changes to activity BEFORE the 
impact of any QIPP schemes.  The plan incorporates cost pressures of 
c£14.5m to cover demand led activity increases covering acute hospital 
activity including cost per case, emergency ambulance, CHC, prescribing 
and certain community services. This funding is also intended to cover 
additional activity where this is required to deliver national pledges such 
as RTT in 18 weeks.  

 
7. Mandatory and Local Quality Investments: Separate to the demand led 

cost pressures and pressures linked to delivery of national pledges 
highlighted in point 6, the CCG has identified 2 mandatory areas of 
investment to date for 2013/14 being 111 implementation and certain 
autism services at a total cost of c£1.5m. As discussed in section 5.1
 “Investing in Quality Improvement and Reducing Health 
Inequalities”, the CCG is also seeking to identify resources to support a 
range of local priorities.  

 
8. QIPP: As discussed above to deliver our Commissioning Intentions a 

minimum £5.5m NET QIPP is required. The QIPP programme in 2013/14 
is split across 4 areas as shown below: 

 

Programme Area 
Gross 

Savings 
Investment NET 

required Savings 
 £’m £’m £’m 

Elective care  1.7 0.8 0.9 

Unscheduled care  4.0 3.1 0.9 

CHC   3.0 0.2 2.8 

Prescribing   0.9 NIL 0.9 

TOTAL 9.6 4.1 5.5 

 

9. Running Costs:  The national planning guidance makes it clear that CCGs 
will receive a Running Cost Allowance (RCA) separately from their 
commissioning allocation. CCGs are not allowed to overspend against this 
allocation but can plan to underspend against the allocation and use any 
in year underspend on commissioned activities.  

 
Sheffield CCG’s allocation at £14,070k is just slightly below £25 per head 
using our latest crude population. The work undertaken in autumn 2012 to 
confirm the staffing establishment of the CCG, committee structures, 
locality funding, premises costs  and services to be procured from the 
CSU, suggested a spend around £12.5m.  This does leave us headroom 
for cost pressures/changes. CCGs have in particular been warned that 
they may face an additional “levy” for costs from NHS Property Services 
Limited where these have not been fully resourced from the transfers from 
PCT allocations.  At this stage the financial plan assumes £1m will be 
available for release to spend on commissioned services. 

 

Page 55



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 34 

Appendix 1. Summary of Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Sheffield 
 
 
1. Population 
 
The Sheffield population is increasing, with the latest 2011 census data indicating a total 
population of 552,700.  This represents almost an 8% increase on the previous census 
(2001) and is broadly consistent with the national average increase.  If this trend 
continues we can expect the population to rise to approximately 600,000 by 2020.  
Three factors are contributing to this rise: a continuing increase in the birth rate; more 
young adults (linked to economic migration and increasing university student numbers); 
and longer life expectancy.  
 
The ONS census population estimates however under-counted the number of Sheffield 
residents registered with SCCG practices at April 2011 by 1.1% and the total number of 
persons registered with SCCG practices is 2.6% higher.  The latest registered 
population figure for SCCG (April 2012) is 570,697, a 0.6% increase over the previous 
year. Of these, 2.2% (12,360) are aged 85 and over.  
 
Of particular note is the expected rise in the over 65s by around 14% between 2009 and 
2020, amounting to around 12,000 more older people in the city by the end of the 
decade. The over 85 year age group is expected to grow most rapidly, some ten times 
that of the 60-69 year age band. In absolute terms, women will remain the largest cohort 
over all older age groups with the gender gap increasing with rising age albeit narrowing 
over time. 
 
We know that the ethnic population of Sheffield is changing but robust data on ethnicity 
is difficult to come by however we know that between 2004 and 2010 the number of non 
“White-British” school children aged between 5 to 16 years in local authority maintained 
schools increased by 29.8% to form 25% of the total school population in 2010. 
 
 
2. Life Expectancy 
 
As noted, one of the key drivers of population change, and a key headline indicator of 
overall health and wellbeing in a population, is life expectancy.  Based on the latest 
available data (2009-2011), Sheffield’s life expectancy at birth is 78.8 years for men and 
82.3 years for women.  Although this represents an increasing trend, Sheffield’s figures 
remain statistically significantly lower than the national averages.  
 
The inequalities gap in life expectancy (as measured by the Slope Index of Inequality) is 
a second key headline indicator of health.  In Sheffield the gap between the most and 
least deprived men widened from 8.7 years in 2001-2003 to 10.2 years in 2005-2007 but 
has since narrowed, returning to 8.7 years in 2009-2011.  For women, the gap initially 
narrowed from 7.1 years in 2001-2003 to 6.3 years in 2004-2006 and then widened 
again to 8.2 years in 2008-2010.  In 2009-2011 it narrowed again to 7.4 years. 
 
 
3. Deprivation 
 
The Slope Index of Inequality has been adopted (locally and nationally) as the standard 
measure of inequality. It is a deprivation based measure and when applied (as 
appropriate) to public health indicators, demonstrates that health inequalities continue to 
blight our city.  In particular, this indicates the role deprivation plays in the variation of 

Page 56



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 35 

health and wellbeing across a population and serves to emphasise the importance of 
focussing on the wider determinants of health. 
 
Based on data from the latest Index of Multiple Deprivation (2010), Sheffield is ranked 
overall as being slightly more deprived than in 2007.  Most of the city’s population live 
within a relatively deprived area and approximately 22% live in the 10th most deprived 
areas in the country (8% live in the 10th least deprived areas). Within South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw, Sheffield is of a similar deprivation rank to Barnsley, Doncaster and 
Rotherham and more deprived than Bassetlaw.  
 
The Index of Multiple Deprivation takes into account the key wider determinants of 
health: income, employment, health and disability, education, skills and training, barriers 
to housing and related services, crime and living environment.  Principal among these is 
income and employment. 
 
 
4. Public Health Priorities 
 
Given the above context for health and wellbeing in Sheffield, and notwithstanding the 
primary importance of the need to focus on the wider determinants of health (particularly 
employment and health, there are four broad areas of health that are considered to be 
priorities: child and maternal health, long term conditions (cardiovascular disease, 
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and diabetes), mental health and wellbeing and 
healthy lifestyles. 
 
4.1 Child and maternal health 
 
A good start in life lays the foundations for future health and life chances. Despite 
continuing improvements generally across the range of child and maternal health 
indicators, marked inequalities in maternal and child health persist within the city.  
Between the ‘best’ and the ‘worst’ wards in the city we have: 

· a 2 fold difference in achievement at Early Years Foundation Stage; 

· a 4 fold difference in infant mortality rates; and 

· a 7 fold difference in smoking in pregnancy. 
 
There are 130,000 children aged 0-19 years in Sheffield and this is expected to rise by 
2% over the next 5 years. The highest growth will be within the 0-4 age range which is 
projected to increase by 6% in the same time frame.  20% of 0-15s are of black and 
minority ethnic (BME) origin; the BME proportion in younger age groups is higher. 
 
Around 11,000 young people currently have some form of learning difficulty or disability 
and this is projected to increase at a rate of 5.1% pa, 2% above the projected national 
rate of increase.  The fastest growing special educational needs categories nationally 
and locally are speech, language and communication needs, and autistic spectrum 
disorder.  3,500 young people have continuing care and end of life care needs within the 
city. 
 
Infant mortality rate (2009-11) is 4.5 deaths <1 yr per 1000 live births.  Sudden infant 
death rates are higher in Sheffield than nationally and concentrated in more deprived 
areas.  Analysis of mothers who lose children to sudden infant death shows that 90% of 
the mothers smoke and 83% have social or mental health risk factors.  
 
Smoking during pregnancy is reducing but is still above the national rate and there is a 
seven fold difference at Community Assembly level in the proportion of women who are 

Page 57



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 36 

smoking ‘at delivery’.   Smoking in pregnancy reduces birth weight and contributes 
significantly to stillbirth and deaths of children in the first year of life. The latest smoking 
in pregnancy figures show for 2011/12 show that 14.1% of mothers smoked around the 
time of delivery. 
 
Breastfeeding rates are above the national average - currently 52.3% women are 
breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks compared to a national average of 45.2%, but again wide 
inequalities exist within the city.  
 
2,000 pre-school children and 9,500 5-17 year olds are estimated to have a mental 
health difficulty of some kind.  The most common disorders are conduct disorders, 
emotional disorders and ADHD.  3.4% of 11/12 year olds report they ‘always feel sad or 
unhappy’; in 11/12 years olds with Special Educational Needs and in those eligible for 
free school meals the proportion rises to 6.8%. (ECM Survey 2009).  Certain groups, 
including children of black and minority ethnic origin, young offenders and looked after 
children, are more likely to experience mental health difficulties and achieve lower 
educational attainment than their peers. 
 
Sheffield benchmarks very poorly against the national average and core city average for 
A&E attendances and emergency admissions for the under-fives e.g. emergency 
admissions rate (09/10) for respiratory conditions in 0-4 year olds in Sheffield is highest 
in England at 239.41 per 10,000 compared with Bristol (98.05) and nationally (115.26) 
(ChiMat 2009/10).  Local data show that the highest use of A&E attendance in Sheffield 
is from the most deprived areas where rates are up to 50% above the city wide average.  

 
There has been some successful partnership working which has helped to slow the rise 
of childhood obesity but downstream the problem is still significant, which will impact 
health outcomes in later life and demand for hospital and primary healthcare services. 
Sheffield teenage pregnancy rates are lower than ever – although still above the 
national rate.  Fewer children are in care overall and the number of children with a Child 
Protection Plan has fallen recently.  The priorities are to improve outcomes through a 
reduction in inequalities in:  

· Smoking during pregnancy  

· Infant mortality 

· Childhood obesity 

· Children’s emergency care 

· Sexual health including teenage conceptions 

· Emotional wellbeing and mental health 
 
4.2 Long term conditions 
 
People having at least one long term condition (LTC) account for approximately 31% of 
the population (rising to 60% of the over 60s) but use 69% of the primary and acute care 
budget in England1.  People with LTCs are far higher users of health and social care 
services than average, accounting for approximately 55% of general practice 
consultations, 68% of A&E attendances and 77% of inpatient bed days1.  It is estimated 
that 85% of deaths in the UK are from chronic diseases.  Within this, 36% of all deaths 
are from cardiovascular disease and 7% from chronic respiratory disease.  In the older 
age group, based on age alone and population projections, if 60% of the over 65s 
continue to have a long term condition1, an estimated 52,000 people over age 65 in 

                                            
1
 10 things you need to know about LTC. DH website 

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/www.dh.gov.uk/en/Healthcare/Longtermconditions/D
H_084294 

Page 58



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 37 

Sheffield would have had a LTC in 2009 rising to 59,000 in this age group by 2020.  This 
would lead us to expect growth at an additional 650 cases per year. 
 
The number of people with more than one LTC increases with age.  Half of all 
individuals with chronic conditions have multiple chronic conditions2, and similar chronic 
conditions tend to cluster (e.g. arthritis, hypertension, CVD, diabetes, mental health 
problems) with related and associated risk factors.  Their differing health and social care 
needs should be recognised and addressed individually in order to avoid diagnostic 
overshadowing. These people are unlikely to fit on single disease management 
pathways and require additional support and non-disease specific approaches to 
manage their conditions. They are more likely to undergo rapid declines in health status 
and a greater likelihood of disability affecting daily functioning. 
 
The impact on health and function is significant and can be lessened significantly by 
better control of the underlying condition(s).  Better management of LTCs will also help 
to prevent a large proportion of health and social care contacts and these efficiency 
gains are supported by benefits to patients and their families. The biggest ‘efficiency 
frontiers’ are where the major costs in healthcare are3. These are: 

· Management of people with long term medical conditions 

· Care of older people 

· Reducing avoidable emergency admissions 

· Care for people at the end of their lives 
 
4.3 Mental health and wellbeing 
 
Mental wellbeing is increasingly recognised as a major factor in health and wellbeing 
and wider socio-economic outcomes. Definitions are important however and there is 
considerable debate and variation in meaning surrounding the different terms that are 
used in relation to this area (e.g. mental ill health, mental wellbeing and emotional 
resilience).  From the perspective of what may make people vulnerable to problems with 
their mental wellbeing evidence suggests the need to focus on those experiencing: 
physical health problems, mental ill health, loneliness, being in debt, substance misuse 
and/or discrimination on the basis of their ethnicity, disability, gender etc. 
 
Feeling good and functioning well influences physical health and affects people’s 
behaviours in relation to smoking, exercise, healthy eating, sexual health, alcohol and 
drug use.  People with mental ill health experience higher rates of physical illness and 
are more likely to die prematurely, largely from treatable conditions. There is a strong 
evidence base supporting the need to focus on children and young people given that 
over half of people with lifetime mental health problems first experience symptoms by 
the age of 14.  Women are one-and-a-half times more likely to be affected by anxiety 
and depression and there is a higher rate of depression in people from non-white ethnic 
communities.  
 
The Mental Health Needs Index indicates that Sheffield has a 15% higher than expected 
admission rate for severe mental health problems than England as a whole. Although 
the death rate from suicide and undetermined injury is lower in Sheffield than the 
national average, local audit data (2006-2010) reveal depression is a key factor in 
around 40% of such deaths.  It is estimated that at least one third of all families 

                                            
2
 Wolff JL et al. Prevalence, expenditures and complications of multiple chronic conditions in the elderly. 

Arch Intern med, Nov 11 2002 
3
 Making progress on efficiency in the NHS in England: options for system reform. The Nuffield 

Trust 2010 

Page 59



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 38 

(including parents and their children) include someone who is currently mentally ill. 4 If 
we focus on individuals, the figure is 17% for adults and 10% for children.  Mental ill 
health represents up to 23% of the total burden of ill health in the UK – the largest single 
cause of disability. 5Overall, the economic cost of mental health problems to the 
economy in England amounted to £105 billion in 2010, of which £30 billion is work 
related. 6More than £2 billion is spent annually on social care for people with mental 
health problems. 7 
 
4.4 Healthy lifestyles 
 
Smoking related illness accounts for approximately 900 deaths per year in Sheffield, 
costing the city an estimated £137 million approximately each year. Smoking is still the 
biggest, reversible cause of ill health and early death in Sheffield as well as nationally.  It 
is the largest single cause of health inequalities, accounting for over half of the 
difference in all middle-aged deaths between the highest and lowest socio-occupational 
groups.  A smoker’s lifespan is shortened by about five minutes for each cigarette 
smoked and those who die through smoking-related illnesses such as heart attack, lung 
cancer or chronic respiratory disease do so 10 to 15 years prematurely.  The health 
benefits of stopping smoking accrue very quickly at any age.  For example, breathing 
and circulatory benefits begin immediately, heart attack risk is halved within a year of 
quitting and lung cancer risk is halved within about 5 years. The prevalence of adult 
smoking in Sheffield is estimated to be approximately 20.5% (IHS Oct 2010 – Sept 11). 
This is slightly higher than the national average, 20.3%. This places Sheffield lowest 
amongst the Core Cities and fourth lowest in the Yorkshire and Humber region (behind 
York, 17.3%, North Yorkshire 17.4% and East Riding 17.9%). The average rate of 
smoking in the Yorkshire and Humber region is 22.1%. 
 
Obesity is estimated to be responsible for over half of all Type II cases of diabetes, 
around a fifth of heart disease and approximately 10% of some cancers (e.g. colon, 
kidney).  It is estimated that 23/7% of adults are obese (based on HSE 2006-8).  Actual 
data based on self-reported data from the Sheffield Health and Exercise Survey of 2002, 
more men (55%) were overweight/obese than women (49%). Among men aged 35-64, 
47% were overweight and a further 17% were obese.  The survey showed that people 
from South Asian ethnic groups had similar levels of obesity to the rest of the population. 
There is a higher prevalence of obesity and overweight among lower socio-economic 
groups (especially women). The prevalence of obesity and overweight increases with 
age.  People of South Asian origin who are categorised as overweight have a higher risk 
of suffering from obesity-related disorders than the rest of the population. Department of 
Health estimates suggest around 580 deaths in Sheffield a year could be prevented if 
diets complied with national nutritional guidelines.  
 
Sheffield has the highest estimated proportion of people aged over 16 years who 
consume alcohol amongst the 8 core cities with 51,000 estimated to be ‘high risk’ 
drinkers. Alcohol is a major contributing factor to levels of ill health and early death, 

                                            
4
 Layard, R How mental illness loses out in the NHS A report by the Centre for Economic 

Performance’s mental Health Policy Group LSE June 2012 
5
 WHO (2008) The Global Burden of Disease: 2004 update, available at: 

www.who.int/healthinfo/global_burden_disease 
6
 Centre for Mental Health (2010) The Economic and Social Coasts of mental Health Problems in 

2009/10, available at: 
www.centreformentalhealth.org.uk/pdfs/Economic_and_social_costs_2010.pdf 
7
 Department of Health (2009) Departmental Report 2009: The Health and Personal Social 

Services Programmes, available at: 
www.official-documents.gov.uk/documents/cm75/7593/7593.pdf 

Page 60



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 39 

including cardiovascular disease, gastrointestinal disease and cancer as well as acute 
conditions resulting from accidents, self harm and violent assault. Alcohol-related 
hospital admissions are increasing in Sheffield and currently around 6,500 people are 
admitted to hospital each year due to alcohol-attributable conditions. Approximately 37% 
of young men and 33% of young women are thought to be drinking more than the 
recommended safe levels. This equates to about 14,000 young men and 12,000 young 
women in Sheffield.  A particular local concern arising from these figures is the 
unplanned, unprotected, regretted and abusive sexual activity linked to alcohol use. The 
alcohol-related costs to the City are huge. The cost to the health services is 
approximately £12 million a year and £15.3 million a year for the criminal justice system. 
In addition, around 250,000 working days are lost and there are 160 reported sexual 
assaults associated with alcohol consumption per year.  Estimates suggest that there 
are 7,900 children in Sheffield affected by their parents’ alcohol consumption. 

Page 61



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 40 

Appendix 2. Practice Suggestions 
 

Suggestion How included 
  

Acute Care (Elective)  

Orthotics 
ABPI for peripheral vascular disease 
Community opportunities - Dermatology 
(digital cameras), pipelle, wound dressing, 
DMARD nurse, phlebotomy, pulmonary 
rehabilitation, fainting/dizziness service, 
acne/roaccutane, keratitus, ear toilet, 
provision of cryotherapy, CCP testing 

All suggestions passed to elective portfolio 
lead, for consideration within review of 
pathways and follow up reduction 

Open discharge 
Minimise follow up 

Commissioning only clinically value adding 
Out patient Follow-up 

  

Acute Care (Unscheduled)  

District Nurses allied to practices (x5) Review of community nursing 

A&E discharge notes Electronic discharge letters  

Unscheduled care, inc out of hours 
provision 

New approach to urgent care 

Increasing resources into primary care Key theme in this plan 

Practice workload coming from secondary 
care 

Increasing resources in primary care 

  

Long Term Conditions  

Healthcare into care homes Review of care Home LES, quality of 
care in care homes 

Commissioning self care for long term 
conditions 

Commission generic self care programmes 

  

Children and Young People  

Vitamin D deficiency To be followed up with practices to 
understand commissioning action 
required 

Integrated working between GP practices 
and community working 

Develop integrated practice, improve 
maternity care 

Joint work with police and education Future Shape Children’s Health (and 0-19 
Partnership Board) 

Reducing high cost out of area placements Progress the development of a local 
provision for children with complex needs  

Lack of HV provision Developing integrated practice 
  

Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 

Improving MH provision (x3) Several actions address this 

Transition of young people to adult 
services (esp MH) (x3) 

Included in children’s and MH&LD areas 

Alcohol Services Sheffield City Council responsibility as part 
of transfer of public health 

  

Page 62



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 41 

Quality   

Preserving the NHS Reflected in CCG values 

Optimum care for migrant populations, 
inc Roma Slovak population 
Immigration assimilation and health issues 

Will be included in CCG health 
inequalities plan 

Medication review done by pharmacists Medicines optimisation & medicines 
safety 

More systematic education strategy for 
primary care 

Improving primary care quality 

Page 63



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 42 

Appendix 3. National Pledges 
Rights and Pledges  2013/14  

likely 
RAG 
Rating 

Risk to 
delivery 
 

Assurance of Delivery / Mitigating Action 

Referral To Treatment waiting times for non-urgent consultant-led treatment  

Admitted patients to start treatment 
within a maximum of 18 weeks from 
referral – 90% 

 Low Performance issues during 2012/13 relating to 
issues in particular specialities at Sheffield 
Children’s Trust (SCHFT) have been actioned 
through contractual and performance 
discussions and will be kept under review as 
we go into 2013/14. 

Non-admitted patients to start 
treatment within a maximum of 18 
weeks from referral – 95% 

 Low As above. 
 

Patients on incomplete non-
emergency pathways (yet to start 
treatment) should have been 
waiting no more than 18 weeks 
from referral – 92% 

 Low As above. 

Additional supporting measure for 
2013/14 
Zero tolerance of over 52 week 
waiters   

 Medium  The medium risk and RAG rating reflects the 
inclusion in this measure of admitted and non-
admitted completed pathways over 52 weeks 
in addition to incomplete pathways which is 
new for 13/14. 
The overall impact on 52 week waits of 
performance issues in certain specialities are 
being addressed via Performance monitoring 
meetings with the Trust to ensure action plans 
are in place. Validation at Trust level is taking 
place to ensure good data quality and 
monitoring takes place at 35 weeks to ensure 
early identification of potential long waits and 
allow appropriate management plans to be put 
in place. Small numbers of patients in some 
specialties, particularly at SCHFT, can place 
additional pressure on this target. 

Diagnostic test waiting times  

Patients waiting for a diagnostic 
test should have been waiting less 
than 6 weeks from referral – 99% 

 Low The small numbers of patients involved with 
respect to SCH performance means the impact 
of just 1 or 2 breaches is significant.  Action 
plans are in place to address the main areas of 
concern and assurance has been given by 
SCH that issues will be resolved. 

A&E waits  

Patients should be admitted, 
transferred or discharged within 4 
Hours of their arrival at an A&E 
department – 95% 

 Medium STHFT and CCG will continue with actions 
initiated in 2012/13:  

· Monthly Executive Performance Review 
involving CCG Committee GP and the 
STHFT Medical Director.  

· Reviewing operational responsibility for 
delivering performance and ensuring 
effective escalation.  

· Optimising the use of the patient discharge 
lounge.  

· A second triage stream in Emergency 
Department at certain times, so that a 'see 
and treat' service can be carried out. 

Page 64



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 43 

· Consider recommendations made from the 
Clinical Quality Review of the A&E service 
undertaken in Q4 12/13. 

Additional supporting measure for 
2013/14 
No wait from decision to admit to 
admission (trolley waits) over 12 
hours 

 Low Actions in relation to A&E waits will also 
support sustaining good performance on 
minimising trolley waits. 

Cancer waits – 2 weeks wait  

Maximum two-week wait for first 
outpatient appointment for patients 
referred urgently with suspected 
cancer by a GP – 93% 

 Low Continue to keep performance under review 
and work with STHFT to identify and address 
and emerging risks. 

Maximum two-week wait for first 
outpatient appointment for patients 
referred urgently with breast 
symptoms (where cancer was not 
initially suspected) – 93% 

 Low As above. 

Cancer waits – 31 days  

Maximum one month (31-day) wait 
from diagnosis to first definitive 
treatment for all cancers – 96% 

 Low As above. 

Maximum 31-day wait for 
subsequent treatment where that 
treatment is surgery – 94% 

 Low As above. 

Maximum 31-day wait for 
subsequent treatment where that 
treatment is an anti-cancer drug 
regimen – 98% 

 Low As above. 

Maximum 31-day wait for 
subsequent treatment where that 
treatment is a course of 
radiotherapy – 94% 

 Low As above. 

Cancer waits – 62 days  

Maximum two month (62-day) wait 
from urgent GP referral to first 
definitive treatment for cancer – 
85% 

 Low As above. 

Maximum 62-day wait from referral 
from an NHS screening service to 
first definitive treatment for all 
cancers – 90% 

 Low As above. 

Maximum 62-day wait for first 
definitive treatment following a 
consultant’s decision to upgrade 
the priority of the patient (all 
cancers) – no operational standard 
set 

 Low As above. 

Category A ambulance calls  

Category A calls resulting in an 
emergency response arriving within 
8 minutes – 75% (standard to be 
met for both Red 1 and Red 2 calls 
separately)  

 Low YAS are putting in place a number of initiatives 
to identify Red calls more quickly. Assurances 
have been provided that the plan will improve 
current performance and support delivery of 
required performance in 2013/14. 

Category A calls resulting in an 
ambulance arriving at the scene 
within 19 minutes – 95% 

 Low As above 

Additional supporting measure for 
2013/14 

 High The risk and RAG rating for this measure 
reflects that this is a new measure so requires 

Page 65



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 44 

Ambulance arrival at A&E to patient 
Handover delays  
i) over 30 minutes ii) over 1 hour 

further confirmation and discussion with trusts 
of data sources and plans to ensure delivery. 

Additional supporting measure for 
2013/14 
Patient Handover to Crew Clear 
delays  
i) over 30 minutes ii) over 1 hour 

 High The risk and RAG rating for this measure 
reflects that this is a new measure so requires 
further confirmation and discussion with trusts 
of data sources and plans to ensure delivery. 

Mixed Sex Accommodation Breaches  

Minimise breaches   Medium Sustain good performance at STH and 
continue to work with SCH to address and 
avoid breaches where these are not in the 
overall best interest of the patient.  This is 
medium risk due to particular factors at SCH 
relating to balancing target against patients’ 
best interests/clinical factors. 

Cancelled Operations  

All patients who have operations 
cancelled, on or after day of 
admission (including day of 
surgery), for non-clinical reasons to 
be offered another binding date 
within 28 days, or the patient’s 
treatment to be funded at time and 
hospital of the patient’s choice.   
 

 Low Work with trusts to sustain required 
performance. 

Additional supporting measure for 
2013/14 
No urgent operation to be cancelled 
for a 2

nd
 time  

 

 High The risk and RAG rating for this measure 
reflects that this is a new measure for 2013/14 
and so robustness of local data is still being 
confirmed to inform discussion with trusts of 
plans to ensure delivery. 

Mental Health  

Care Programme Approach (CPA): 
The proportion of people under 
adult mental illness specialties on 
CPA who were followed up within 7 
days of discharge from psychiatric 
in-patient care during the period – 
95% 

 Low Following drop (from August 2012) in 
previously good performance plans for 
mitigating action will continue to be discussed 
at the quality and performance review meeting, 
and performance kept under review.  We will 
seek a remedial plan if it's evident that they will 
struggle to meet this target without a change to 
working practices.  
 

 
 

Page 66



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 45 

Appendix 4. NHS SHEFFIELD CCG 2013/14 Allocations as announced on 18 
December 2012 
 
BOX A: Notes £'000 % 

change 

CCG Opening Baseline    

2012/13 Opening Baseline per submission to DH in July 12 exercise 734,420  

Less  local  running cost budget within this baseline E -13,707  

2012/13 Opening Baseline net of running costs  720,713  

Central Adjustments to baseline exercise:    

Specialised Services Adjustment A -41,426  

Re-distribution of 2% headroom B -2,670  

Adjustment to Public Health (Local Authority) value C -1,281  

Adjusted CCG Baseline Excluding Running Costs Before Uplift  675,336  

    

Cash Uplift    

General cash uplift  15,533 2.3% 

    

CCG  Programme (Commissioning) Recurrent Allocation 2013/14  D 690,869  

    

Running Costs Allocation 2013/14  - equates to just less than £25 

per head 

E 14,070  

    

TOTAL recurrent allocation for 2013/14  704,939  

    

During the year the CCG will expect to also get a range of non recurrent allocations for specific 

issues 

    

    

Box B:    

Non Recurrent allocation for joint work between health and social care £'000 % 

change 

Funding will be transferred to SCC direct from NHS CB    

    

2012/13 allocation  7,280  

    

Increase to this allocation for 2013/14  2,403 33% 

    

2013/14 allocation  9,683  

    

Nationally determined Increase at 33%  equates to 0.3% of headline 2.6% uplift to CCG allocations 

    

In addition CCGs will have to separately demonstrate how they have spent their share of £300m re-ablement 

funding which is within CCG baseline allocations. For Sheffield CCG this is approx £3m and we will 

demonstrate through our existing investment in community/intermediate care services. 

Page 67



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 46 

 
    

Notes:    

A: The national definition set for specialised services to be commisisoned via NHS CB was announced late 

autumn and this changed the value of services significantly increasing the "topslice" from CCG baseline by 

£41k. Significant work is still needed to confirm whether this represents an appropriate transfer of resource 

and how in year risks will be managed. 

B: In the baseline exercise Sheffield correctly assessed that 100% of the PCT's 2% headroom resource had 

been used on CCG business in 12/13. The NHS CB has subsequently stipulated that an element of 2% resource 

must be allocated to NHS CB due to future requirements of NHS CB direct commissioning budgets to hold a 

2% headroom budget. This represents a £2.7m loss of income to the CCG from previous plans. 

C: In the baseline exercise the PCT indicated that the PH budget to be transferred to the LA should be lower 

than per previous exercises. This has not been accepted by the NHS CB and results in further loss of income to 

the CCG, 

D: This is the RECURRENT budget which the CCG has available for commissioning spend in 2013-14, although 

per note F below 2% must be ring fenced for NON recurrent expenditure. 

E: This is the separate budget which the CCG is allowed to spend on its running costs including services 

bought in eg from CSU and the spend on Locality infrastructure.  Should the CCG underspend against this 

budget resources can be used for commissioning spend. 

 

 
 

Page 68



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 47 

Appendix 5. Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Management lead: Tim Furness, Chief of Business Planning and Partnerships 
Supported by NHS West and South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Commissioning Support 
Unit Equality and Diversity Officer – Elaine Barnes 
Date of assessment: 21st February 2013   

 
Context: 
The commissioning intentions document describes the CCG’s plans for 2013/14, 

towards achieving its four aims: 
1. To improve patient experience and access to care 
2. To improve the quality and equality of healthcare in Sheffield 
3. To work with Sheffield City Council to continue to reduce health 

inequalities in Sheffield 
4. To ensure there is a sustainable, affordable healthcare system in 

Sheffield. 
 
The table below summarises our initial assessment of the potential impact of the 
CCG commissioning intentions on people with each of the nine protected 
characteristics described in the Equality Act. 
 
Protected 
Characteristics 

Baseline data and research –  
What is available? What does it show? Are 
there any gaps? 
Use both quantitative and qualitative research 
and user data 
Include consultation with users if available 

Is there likely to be a 
differential impact? 
If ‘yes’, is that impact 
direct or indirect 
discrimination? 

Gender  The plans apply to both genders. Yes – direct  
 

Race This applies to all races.  There are specific 
and appropriate culture needs which would 
need to be taken into consideration when 
delivering health care services to black and 
Minority ethnic groups. 

Yes – direct/ Indirect 
 

Disability Learning disability has been highlighted as an 
area that required future investment in light of 
the Winterbourne inquiry and Mid Staffordshire 
Hospital. 
The disability needs of children and adults are 
fully taken into consideration across all the 
health care provisions. 

Yes 

Sexual 
orientation 

Sexual health needs are not reflected in the 
plans.   

Yes – direct/ Indirect 
 

Age The plans apply to all ages and there are 
specific focus and emphasis on the different 
needs of children, young people and older 
people. 
There are plans to improve transition from 
children services to adult’s services.  The 
growing needs of an aging population have 
been taken into consideration. 

Yes 

Religion/Belief The plans including stopping commissioning 
procedures for circumcisions for religion 

Yes – direct/ Indirect 
 

Page 69



FINAL DRAFT DOCUMENT  

Page 48 

reasons.  
They do not describe any actions to ensure 
that the needs of people from all religion 
background including non religion are taken 
into consideration 

Gender 
Reassignment 

National research has identified that there is a 
growing numbers of individual who going 
through the process of gender identify. The 
commissioning intentions should acknowledge 
this and ensure that the process involved does 
not disadvantage individual or groups. 

Yes – direct/ Indirect 
 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

There is nothing in the plans that refers to 
marital or partnership status. 
 

No 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity  

There is a remit to improve maternity care, 
within the children and young people portfolio. 

Yes – direct/ Indirect 
 

Human Rights The commitment of Sheffield CCG to continue 
to work in partnership Sheffield City Council to 
reduce health inequalities in Sheffield will 
continue to support the human rights of the 
population.  

Yes – direct/ Indirect 
 

 
General 
The CCG Commissioning Intentions includes commitment to reducing health 
inequalities and to ensure compliance with the Equality Act, which should have 
an impact on people with each of the protected characteristics.  The 
commissioning intentions fully support the recommendations within the Fairness 
Commission report. 
 
Conclusion 
The Commissioning Intentions are likely to have a differential impact on people 
with most of the protected characteristics.  It is not possible to describe the 
impact as the document does not include details of the service changes 
proposed.  The CCG should ensure that an equality impact assessment is 
completed with each business case for change, to identify both negative and 
positive differential impact and set out mitigating action where appropriate. 
 
 

Page 70



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   Margaret Kitching, Director of Quality & Nursing 

NHS England (South Yorkshire & Bassetlaw) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    25th April 2013 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: NHS England Progress Report 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Margaret Kitching, Director of Quality & Nursing 

NHS England (South Yorkshire & Bassetlaw) 
______________________________________________________________ 
Summary:  
In this paper I will summarise the key facts about NHS England (NHS E).  I will 
explain how NHS England will work and I would welcome a discussion with the 
Health and Wellbeing Board to inform how best to work together. There are no 
direct financial or legal consequences arising from recommendations made in 
this report.  
______________________________________________________________ 
Recommendations: 
The health and Wellbeing Board is asked to discuss this report and agree any 
further actions arising. 
 

Background Papers: 
NHS England’s ‘Plans on a Page’. 
 
 
 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

6c 

Page 71



2 
 

NHS ENGLAND PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 
  
1.1 
 

In this paper I will summarise the key facts about NHS England (NHS E).  
I will explain how NHS England will work and I would welcome a 
discussion with the Health and Wellbeing Board to inform how best to 
work together. There are no direct financial or legal consequences 
arising from recommendations made in this report.  
 

  
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 
  
2.1 
 

Everyone has greater control of their health and their wellbeing, 
supported to live longer, healthier lives by high quality health and care 
services that are compassionate, inclusive and constantly-improving. 

  
 

3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
  
3.1 
 

See Objectives (4.2). 

  
4.0 OVERVIEW OF NHS ENGLAND 
  
4.1 
 

NHS England (formerly NHS Commissioning Board) was created on 1 
April 2013. PCTs were abolished. It is an independent body at arm’s 
length to the government. The Secretary of State for Health agrees an 
annual ‘mandate’ with NHS England which incorporates the NHS 
Constitution and NHS Outcomes Framework.  
 
Vision - Everyone has greater control of their health and their wellbeing, 
supported to live longer, healthier lives by high quality health and care 
services that are compassionate, inclusive and constantly-improving. 
 
Purpose - We create the culture and conditions for health and care 
services and staff to deliver the highest standard of care and ensure that 
valuable public resources are used effectively to get the best outcomes 
for individuals, communities and society for now and for future 
generations. 
 
Values - The values enshrined in the NHS Constitution underpin all that 
we do: 

· Respect and dignity 

· Commitment to the quality of care 

· Compassion 

· Improving lives 

· Working together for patients 

· Everyone counts 

Page 72



3 
 

4.2 Objectives and Functions 
 
Objectives – NHS England has 11 objectives, including 2 priority 
objectives 

1. Priority – Improving patient satisfaction 
2. Priority – Improving staff satisfaction 
3. Preventing people from dying prematurely 
4. Enhancing quality of life for people with long term conditions 
5. Helping people recover from episodes of ill health or following 

injury 
6. Ensuring people have a positive experience of care 
7. Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and 

protecting them from avoidable harm 
8. Promoting equality and reducing inequalities in health outcomes 
9. Enabling more people to know their NHS Constitution rights and 

pledges 
10. Becoming an excellent organisation 
11. Ensuring quality financial management  

 
Functions – NHS England has four central areas of work that allow it to 
deliver its objectives. I include my own interpretation of how this fits 
together: 

· Oversight, facilitation, coordination and leadership – NHS 
England is one national organisation and will maintain oversight of 
the system. To do this it will empower clinical leadership and work 
in partnership. This includes the development of strategic clinical 
networks, senates, hosting of the ‘safeguarding forum’ and hosting 
the Quality Surveillance Group to have oversight of the safety and 
quality of NHS care across the area. It also includes membership 
of local partnerships including Health and Wellbeing Boards. It is 
the success of these partnerships that will be critical in delivering 
NHS England objectives 

· Direct commissioning - of £25bn of health services including 
primary care, some public health services (e.g. vaccination and 
immunisation, most screening programmes and under 5 children’s 
public health services), specialised services, all dental services, 
military health care and offender health care. Summary plans for 
specialised services, primary care and public health are attached. 

· Supporting the commissioning system – allocate £60bn to 
clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) supporting their 
development and seeking assurance. Also, working with 
commissioning support units (CSUs), Academic Health Science 
Networks, Health Education England and others to both 
coordinate and support an effective commissioning system. NHS 
England also has regulatory functions including provision of a 
‘Responsible Officer’ to oversee performance of independent 
contractors (includes GPs, general dental practitioners, community 
pharmacists and optometrists). Also, provision of an ‘Accountable 
Officer Controlled Drugs’ and associated statutory responsibilities.  

· Emergency planning, resilience and response – ensure that 

Page 73



4 
 

the NHS plans for civil emergencies and is resilient. NHS England 
is a category one responder.  

 
Organisation – NHS England is one national public body working to one 
operating model. There is one national support centre, 4 regions and 27 
Area Teams. South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw is the NHS England Area 
Team for this patch. All Area Teams have the four areas of work 
described above except with regards to certain commissioning 
responsibilities and strategic clinical networks and senates. Specialised 
commissioning is carried out by 10 of the 27 area teams (SYB has this 
responsibility for Yorkshire and the Humber), strategic clinical networks 
and senates are lead by 12 of the 27 area teams and again SYB leads 
this for Yorkshire and the Humber. Offender and military health is lead 
across Yorkshire and the Humber by other area teams.  
 
 

4.3 NHS England South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw  

NHS England South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw has a complete senior 
team and most of the posts in the area team have been filled. NHS E 
continues to produce policy and further elements of the single operating 
model. However, NHS E is not yet a mature organisation and does not 
yet have every policy and operating model it needs. Locally, NHS E is 
progressing well and is working across as area in which: 

· CCGs are developing strongly with effective working 
arrangements developing between CCGs, with NHS E and with 
partner organisations (local authorities and provider trusts in 
particular) 

· Public Health transition has been successful, with public health 
expertise available to the NHS from within local authorities and 
from Public Health England. Key public health programmes 
remain in place without which neither local authorities or the NHS 
can deliver improved health.  

· There is relative financial stability 

· Generally good performance with regards to NHS Constitution 
commitments and other ‘everyone counts’ requirements. However, 
A&E performance (4 hour wait) is widely inadequate and there are 
some problems affecting parts of the area such as some waiting 
times.  
 

Challenges for the future  

The main challenges are driven by: 

· Financial challenge (lower growth in health spending, negative 
growth in local authority spending), an ageing population and new 
technologies 

· Long standing inequalities in health and health outcomes.  

· A wish for continued improvements in outcomes from health care 
and the configuration changes needed to deliver these without 
spending much more money.  

 

Page 74



5 
 

Over recent decades health and health care have seen remarkable 
improvements. These have been driven by factors such as reduced 
smoking, better health care including the identification and management 
of long term conditions such as cardiovascular disease, new 
technologies in health care and the centralisation of specialist services 
such as those for cancer and major trauma. However, there remains a 
gaping inequalities gap. Closing this gap is a priority.  
This requires action to: 

· Tackle the root causes of poor health such as poor educational 
attainment, worklessness and the cycle of poor outcomes often 
driven by teenage pregnancy and poorly functioning family and 
social systems.  

· Ameliorate the root causes of ill health by promoting healthier 
lifestyles. This includes reducing smoking prevalence (the biggest 
single driver of inequalities in health outcomes), reducing 
excessive drinking and promoting healthier diets, breast feeding 
and exercise 

· Ensure health care is utilised in proportion to need. Health care 
interventions such as treatment of cardiovascular risk and cancer 
screening, taken up by those at highest risk, will reduce health 
inequalities. Providing the best general practice services to the 
poorest populations is at the heart of the NHS contribution to 
reducing avoidable death. Improving self care and coordination of 
care for older people is also important.  

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board should hold partners to account for 
delivery within an agreed health and wellbeing strategy informed by the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.  Priorities agreed here clearly also 
contribute to NHS E objectives. 
 

  
5.0 
 
 
 

Conclusion  

NHS England South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw is part of a national 
organisation committed to prioritising patients in everything we do. It 
empowers clinicians and makes evidence based decision in an open and 
transparent way. The NHS architecture introduces many changes and a 
particular risk is the number of interfaces created. However, there are 
great opportunities to work in partnership and across organisational 
boundaries, with clinicians and local authorities driving changes that will 
make a real difference.  
 
 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

6.1 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to discuss this report and 
agree any further actions arising. 

  
 

Page 75



6
 

 B
ib

li
o

g
ra

p
h

y
 

It
e

m
 

L
in

k
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

N
H

S
 C

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.n
h

s
.u

k
/c

h
o

ic
e

in
th

e
N

H
S

/R
ig

h
ts

a
n

d
p

le
d

g
e

s
/N

H
S

C
o

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
/P

a
g
e

s
/O

v
e

rv
ie

w
.a

s
p

x
 

R
ig

h
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
  

N
H

S
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 h
o
m

e
 p

a
g
e

 
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.e
n

g
la

n
d

.n
h
s
.u

k
/ 

N
H

S
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 h
o
m

e
 p

a
g
e

 

N
H

S
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 ‘
E

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 
c
o

u
n

ts
’ 
 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.e
n

g
la

n
d

.n
h
s
.u

k
/e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

c
o

u
n

ts
/ 

D
e

s
c
ri
b

e
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 
it
s
 t

o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 l
e

v
e

rs
 

N
H

S
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.e
n

g
la

n
d

.n
h
s
.u

k
/p

p
-1

3
1
4

-1
5
1

6
/ 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

N
H

S
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.e
n

g
la

n
d

.n
h
s
.u

k
/r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
/ 

L
in

k
 t

o
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
C

C
G

s
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
lin

ic
a

l 
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 e

tc
 

E
a

s
t 

M
id

la
n
d

s
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

O
b

s
e

rv
a

to
ry

 (
fo

r 
a

ll 
a

c
u

te
 

tr
u

s
t 

q
u

a
lit

y
 d

a
s
h

b
o

a
rd

s
) 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.e
m

q
o

.e
a

s
tm

id
la

n
d

s
.n

h
s
.u

k
/w

e
lc

o
m

e
/q

u
a

lit
y
-

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

/a
c
u

te
-t

ru
s
t-

q
u

a
lit

y
-d

a
s
h

b
o
a

rd
/p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

-d
a

s
h

b
o

a
rd

s
/ 

A
c
u

te
 T

ru
s
t 

Q
u
a

lit
y
 D

a
s
h

b
o
a

rd
s
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 q
u
a

lit
y
 

d
a

s
h
b

o
a

rd
s
 

N
o

t 
y
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
  

D
a

s
h

b
o
a

rd
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 
fo

r 
e

v
e

ry
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

  

  

Page 76



National Priorities 2013-14 Expected Outcomes of Implementing National Guidance 

Locally in 2013-2014 

End State Ambition 2015-16 

Internal 

Medicine 

1. Reconfiguration of vascular services 

2. National consultation on the services for Adult Congenital Heart Disease 

3. (a)     Implementation of the service specifications for cystic fibrosis services (centres and 

shared care) 

          (b)     Completion of the introduction of the year of care tariff 

1. (a)     Establishment of provider networks and appropriate centralisation of arterial work 

           (b)     Symptom to treatment waiting time for carotid endarterectomy <14 days 

2. Agreed configuration of ACHD services for Yorkshire & Humber with networks and surgical 

centres clearly defined 

3. (a)     Clearly defined provider networks underpinned by inter Trust agreements setting out 

clinical responsibilities. 

           (b)     Agreed service model for North Yorkshire & Humber area i.e. York and Hull 

1. All services compliant with national standards and improved clinical outcomes 

2. (a)     Safe and sustainable services with clear patient pathways 

           (b)     Improved clinical outcomes 

3. All services compliant with national standards and improved clinical outcomes 

 

Cancer and 

Blood 

1. Implement the recommendations of the National Radiotherapy Advisory Group and the 

service specification 

2. Reconfiguration of sarcoma services 

3. Implementation of Improving Outcomes Guidance/national service specification for 

pancreatic cancer services 

4. Implementation of IOG/national service specification for brain/CNS cancer services 

5. Implementation of consistent chemotherapy policies and national CDF list 

6. Develop robust contracting model for high cost drug for paroxysmal nocturnal 

haemoglobinuria 

1. Action plan agreed with providers detailing the service model, preferred service locations 

and procurement arrangements 

2. (a)     Revised service model for sarcoma services for the North Yorkshire & Humber 

population  

           (b)     Transfer of specialised surgery out of Hull 

3. Completion of a review of the sustainability of pancreatic cancer surgery in Hull 

4. (a)     Reduced lengths of stay in tertiary centre 

           (b)     Efficient repatriation to local services 

5. Implementation of national currencies, tariffs and policies in local contracts 

6. Database fully implemented and drug costs monitored 

1. (a)     Improved access to radiotherapy  

           (b)     Increased uptake of targeted radiotherapy eg IMRT 

2.  Services meet the national standards 

           (a)     Services that meet the national standards 

           (b)     Improved clinical outcomes 

4. (a)     Improved access to treatment and rehabilitation services post surgery 

           (b)     Improved quality of care for patients 

5. Consistent and equitable provision of chemotherapy and cancer drugs to patients 

6. Clear process for monitoring and managing demand for ultra orphan drugs 

Trauma 1. Implementation of the national service specification for major trauma (adults and 

children) 

2. Delivery of 18 week waiting time for adult neurosurgery services 

3. Implementation of national service  specification for burn care services 

4. Implement the national service specification for spinal cord injury services 

1. (a) 100% of patients ISS 16> direct referrals to major trauma centres  

           (b) 100% of patients ISS 16> in a major trauma centre with a rehabilitation prescription 

2. All neurosurgery providers meeting the 18 week standard 

3. Complete gap analysis and work with North West and North East Area Teams to develop 

plan to achieve compliance (service configuration of burn care centres and burn care 

facilities) 

4. Work with STHT and MYHT to complete a gap analysis and develop an action plan to 

achieve compliance 

1. All major trauma admissions direct to major trauma centre and prompt access to 

rehabilitation 

2. Robust provider capacity plans/commissioner plans to sustain improved waiting times 

3. Clear patient pathways across the network and improved quality of services 

4. (a)     National standards achieved across patient pathways 

           (b)     Timely rehabilitation and resettlement for all patients  

Women and 

Children 

1. (a)     Implementation of the recommendations of the national review of paediatric 

neurosurgery 

          (b)     Implementation of the JCPCT decision about the configuration of children’s         

congenital heart services 

2. Develop a plan to deliver the next phase of implementing the national Neonatal Toolkit 

and the national service specification 

3. Establish more formal arrangements for coordinating the delivery of paediatric surgery 

1. (a)     Y&H/NE Networks established for paediatric neurosurgery 

           (b)     Y&H/NE Network established with children’s cardiology centre in Leeds 

2. (a)    Gestational threshold of 26 weeks and 6 days across all providers in Y&H 

           (b)    Comprehensive gap analysis of medical and nursing workforce and phased plan of 

implementation agreed. 

3. Established network of providers and inter-Trust agreements to support in reach and 

outreach working 

1. (a)     Safe and sustainable paediatric neurosurgery services 

           (b)     Safe and sustainable services for children with congenital heart problems with clear 

patient pathways 

2. All providers meet the national standards of provision and deliver improved quality of care 

3. Sustainable high quality surgical services for children 

Mental Health 1. (a) Secure service and CAMHS Case Management and Gatekeeping 

          (b) Continued roll-out of My Shared Pathway and Patient Involvement 

          (c) Increase women’s secure capacity 

2.       Offender PD project development jointly with NOMs 

3. Review and increase CAMH’s T4 capacity in area 

4. Responding to issues emerging from Winterbourne report 

1. (a) Reduce admissions, length of stay and cost efficiencies. Improved pathway management 

for patients, and care delivered in appropriate level of security 

           (b)Improved quality of services and threshold management 

           (c) New beds open 

2. Roll out of national Offender PD work programme (legacy doc) 

3. Action plan agreed and delivery options identified 

4. Implications for local providers identified and actioned 

1. (a) Case management embedded into practice for all specialised MH services 

           (b) Improved access to and egress from Secure Services 

           (c) Appropriate capacity provided nationally 

2         Review of new Offender PD service infrastructure 

3. Increased capacity provided and reduced out of area placements 

4. Safe and appropriate services 

Values and 

Principles 

Services are patient centred 

and outcome based 

Improved outcomes are delivered across 

each of the domains 

Fairness and Consistency – patients have access to services 

regardless of location 

Productivity and efficiency 

improves 

Strategic Context and Challenges 

1Standards and Quality 

• Core specifications in place for all services or derogations applied for 

• Responding to all issues emerging from the Francis Report and Winterbourne. 

2.     Service and Organisational Configuration 

• Service/system reconfiguration across Yorkshire & the Humber 

• High profile FT applications in the pipeline e.g. Leeds Teaching Hospitals, Hull & 

East Yorkshire Hospitals, Mid Yorkshire Hospitals 

• Clinical service reviews in progress e.g. Mid Yorkshire 

• Establishment and development of strategic clinical networks and Operational 

Delivery Networks 

3.     Finance & Workforce 

• Need to develop sustainable 24/7 workforce in key specialties 

• Significant financial challenges in managing performance and delivering QIPP 

in an environment of increasing demand/cost 

4.     New Commissioning System 

• Single operating model for the commissioning of specialised services 

• Implementation of the manual and identification rules 

• Development of relationships with other service commissioners and CSU 

• Work with CCGs to understand the commissioning implications of services 

identified “for early review” 

QIPP Improvements 

• Development of quality assessment framework 

• Secure compliance against service specifications with clear 

action plans 

• Standardisation of local prices 

• Contribute to development and implementation of 

national QIPP schemes (including procurement) 

• Work with local providers to implement QIPP schemes 

locally 

• Work with providers on high cost drug  & device cost 

reductions and demand management 

• Further implementation of gatekeeping and case 

management of mental health pathways 

• Increase pre-emptive transplants 

• Implement PET/CT price reduction 

Organisational Development 

• Development of relationships and ways of working within 

the Area Team and between the 3 Area Teams in Yorkshire 

& the Humber 

• Develop collaborative co-commissioner approach with 

CCGs 

• Embed new single operating model for specialised 

commissioning 

• Develop relationships with strategic clinical networks and 

operational delivery networks 

• Relaunch/refocus provider relationships 

• Develop local arrangements to secure and sustain the 

patient voice 

• Design and develop systems and processes for managing 

complaints and incidents 

• Establish and embed new CSU activities 

Area Team : South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (Covering whole of Yorkshire and Humber) Specialised Services Programme 

Prevent premature death Domains 
Quality of life for patients with 

LTCs 

Help recover from ill 

health/injury 

Ensure positive experience of 

care 

Care delivered in a safe 

environment 

Pre-existing Priorities 12/13 

1.        Service Issues 

• Implementation of the Yorkshire & Humber Vascular Services Review 

• Reconfiguration of sarcoma services for North Yorkshire and Humber 

population 

• Formulation of the plan to develop and expand radiotherapy 

capacity 

• Implementation of national decision on paediatric cardiac surgery 

• Phased implementation of national Neonatal Toolkit (neonatal 

surgery and gestational thresholds) 

• Phase 2 of the Major Trauma implementation plans 

• Specialised mental health case management and gate-keeping and 

capacity review for CAMHS 

2.        System/Process Issues 

• Establishment of robust and resilient data and information systems 

• Delivery of safe transition in terms of commissioning all prescribed 

services and transferring non-specialised services to CCGs 

• Safe and effective transition of contracts from PCTs to NHS CB 

P
age 77



National Priorities 2013-14 Expected Outcomes of Implementing National Guidance Locally in 

2013-2014 

End State Ambition 2015-16 

Assurance • Safe and effective transition of contracts from Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) to NHS 

Commissioning Board. 

• Use national and local data and intelligence to drive up outcomes in primary care. 

• Consistent contract and performance management of independent contractors. 

• Implement single performers list, GP revalidation and appraisal and maintain robust 

response to performer concerns. 

• Continuity of high quality, safe and effective service provision across primary care providers. 

• Use of dashboards and local intelligence across all independent contractor groups enabling risk based 

targeted response to performance concerns about Contractors and performers. 

• Implement assurance management frameworks for independent contractor groups. 

• Implement assurance management framework for applications to performer lists and actions taken in 

response to concerns regarding performers. 

• Support to GPs and appraisers to deliver GP revalidation and appraisal programme with 100% of GPs 

appraised and 33% revalidated.   

•  Confidence in Area Team. 

• Consistency and fairness in the management of quality and performance against 

benchmarked standards. 

• Safe, effective and value for money services provided for patients in AT area. 

• Suitable and efficient performers operating within the AT team. 

Quality • Continuously improve quality outcomes and access to primary care services. 

• Address unjustifiable variation and improve access to and availability of medical dental and 

pharmacy services over 7 days. 

• Balance local community needs with single operating system and build consistency in 

contractual relationships with providers through a clinically led, professionally managed 

commissioning approach (including the continuous development of LPNs). 

• Introduce Friend and family test 

• Implementation of Francis recommendations 

• Ensure compassion in practice is delivered at all levels 

• Use of dashboards for all independent contractor groups including appraisal and revalidation to 

benchmark, identify best practice, and to respond to poor performance. 

• Improved service availability, across 7 days through procurement. 

• Achieve common understanding of variation in service provision and accessibility, and progress toward 

reduction in variation across CCGs, Area Team and against national benchmarks as they are established.  

• Continuous development of Local Professional Networks (LPNs). 

• Improved quality of care for people with learning disabilities  and vulnerable patients 

• Improving our culture for compassionate care  by embracing the 6 C values 

• Increased use of technology and support for ETP role out. 

• Improved patient feedback. 

•  Contractors continuously improving and % achieving upper quartile benchmarks against key 

quality and outcome measures including reduction in exception rates. 

• Greater choice, accessibility and clarity for patients regarding services they can expect to 

receive.  7 day access to GP services.   

• No unacceptable or unexplained variations against national or, where appropriate, locally 

determined benchmarks.   

• Strong clinical leadership and engagement across 4 professional groups delivering great 

outcomes. 

• Improve patient voice and increase patient participation 

• Improved patient experience through compassionate care 

Single 

Operating 

Model 

• Co produce a primary care strategy for Area Team with patient groups, CCGs, LAs, providers 

and local representative committees. 

• Embedded Single Operating Model across Area Team. 

• Commissioning directed enhanced services or schemes to meet national priorities. 

• Implement nationally agreed changes to secure equitable funding in GMS (reduction in MPIG 

2014). 

• Begin discussions with PMS contractors to ensure equitable and fair funding across 

GMS/PMS. 

• Progress with delivery and increased focus on high quality, clinically effective, evidence based services. 

• Standardised processes adopted and implemented with staff fully trained. 

• All patients have access to services commissioned as directed enhanced services or schemes. 

 

•  Strong working relationships forged with partner organisations and professional and patient 

groups, enabling delivery of strategy. 

• All staff fully conversant with Single Operating Model. 

• Improved care and services for patients, accessible to all regardless of where they live. 

Securing 

Excellence- 

Dentistry 

• In response to securing excellence development of national consistent care pathways across 

all dental specialities. 

• Support new dental contract pilot sites. 

• Promote improved access to dentistry. 

• Effective commissioning of secondary care dental services. 

• Development of fully integrated approach to commission of dental care across all dental specialities. 

• Implement new contract performance framework across primary and secondary care dental services. 

• Improve dental access targeting areas of need. 

•  Improved access to primary care dentistry and % of practices open evening and weekends. 

• Benchmarked data against national indication. 

• Service developed against care pathways. 

• Standardised levels of care that promote quality services for all patients in SY&B. 

FHS (Family 

Health 

Service) 

• Lift and shift FHS functions safely to ensure continuity of business critical functions. 

• Implementation of FHS transformation and cost reduction programme. 

• Development and maintenance of single performers list. 

• Implementation of ISFE and new payment systems for GPs and optometrists. 

• Staff and asset transfer and revision of governance arrangements in light on new accountability lines. 

• Participate and influence national FHS review, rigorously review cost base in light of direction of travel 

and make efficiency savings as required and prepare for outcomes of review. 

• In tandem with “primary care commissioning” (PCC), review and adapt internal systems of support to the 

performers list management process and ensure adoption of NHSCB polices/procedures/systems. 

• Participation in national design group and implementation of revised procedures locally to deliver new 

ISFE and liaison with contractors to ensure smooth transition of payments. 

• Stable service for transfer and business continuity. 

• Reduce costs to within required per capita levels. 

• Standardised management of national performers list. 

• Standardised payment systems nationally. 

Values and Principles 
Common core offer of high quality patient 

centred primary care  

Continuous improvement in health 

outcomes across the domains 

Patient experience and clinical leadership driving 

the commissioning  agenda 

Balance between standardisation and local 

empowerment 

Area Team : South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Primary Care Programme 

Prevent premature death Domains Quality of life for patients with LTCs Help recover from ill health/injury Ensure positive experience of care Care delivered in a safe environment 

Strategic Context and Challenges 

• Differing range of primary care provision; health needs and priorities 

across and within the 5 Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) areas. 

• Mixed economy  of contract forms e.g. Medical -  GMS, PMS, APMS ; 

Dental -  GDS, PDS contracts. 

• Variation in  utilisation rates, access, prescribing and quality across 

primary care services. 

• Evidence of increased pressure on urgent care services in the last 2 

quarters of 12/13. 

• Importance of market development and provider resilience to ensure 

safe and sustainable configuration of primary care provision. 

• CCG role in strategic leadership, coupled with the duty to support  

quality improvement in general practice. 

• CQC registration for contractors and implications  of improvement 

plans. 

• Workforce planning and  development  to recognise important 

contribution  of  primary care providers. 

• 3 million lives – promoting the use of technology to improve outcomes. 

QIPP Improvements 

• Review provision of orthodontic activity and variation in UOA rates.  

• Ensure primary care  providers  make further improvements  to the care of those 

patients with long term conditions (including learning disabilities) by more proactive 

care planning and by optimal management of QOF (including exception reporting) and 

enhanced services. 

• Prescribing and referrals managed in accordance with CCG plans, based on  best 

practice and sound evidence,  addressing variation and reducing  avoidable hospital 

admissions. 

• Review configuration of primary care provision to secure future provision of high quality 

services and address  patient need. This will include quality and suitability of premises.  

• Support primary care providers to optimise workforce opportunities and to maximise 

the benefits of technology to improve outcomes for patients. 

• Review APMS/PMS objectives, contracts  and prices to deliver benchmarked outcomes. 

• With CCGs/Local Authorities (LA)  review enhanced services contracts to ensure no 

duplication in funding and to review outcomes commissioned. 

• With CCGs review QOF Q&P to ensure no duplication of funding or QIPP return. 

• Ensure robust Pharmacy Needs Assessment (PNA) to improve service efficiency. 

Organisational Development 

• Development of relationships and ways of working with primary care 

providers, and key partners, CCGs and HWBs and with the new 

Academic  Health Science Network (AHSN) to spread innovation and 

best practice. 

• Establish new primary care commissioning team. 

• Establish matrix working across Area Team. 

• Training on single operating model and procedures to aid one 

system working and introduce new culture to ways of working. 

• Embedding new systems and procedures. 

• Revalidation/appraisal – develop culture and environment where 

clinical practice will flourish. 

Pre-existing Priorities 12/13 

General Practice 

• Pre-commitments on primary care premises improvements. 

• Practice mergers in pipeline. 

• Reducing variation in quality of primary care through use of national 

dashboards. 

• Commissioning of  translation and interpreting services for target 

groups. 

• Outstanding issues relating to APMS contracts and practices developed 

under “equitable access” programme. 

Dental 

• Addressing variations in Units of Dental Activity (UDA) rates and units of 

orthodontic activity (UOA) rates in dental contracts. 

• Reconfiguration of dental urgent access in light of NHS 111. 

Pharmacy 

• Pharmacy applications currently in pipeline. 

• ‘Electronic Transfer of Prescriptions’ (ETP) roll-out. 

P
age 78



National Priorities 2013-14 Expected Outcomes of Implementing National 

Guidance Locally in 2013-2014 

End State Ambition 2015-16 

Immunisation • Ensure services are delivered in line with the immunisations and 

screening national delivery framework, the Single Operating Model 

and national specifications. 

• Ensure services delivered in line with national specifications. 

• Implement new programmes as required  e.g. rota virus and 

Shingles. 

• Establishing robust data collection and analysis systems. 

• Single Operating Model embedded. 

• Improved and consistent access/quality to programmes. 

• Improved performance data. 

• Immunisation uptake rates in SYB amongst the best in the country. 

• Reduction in mortality. 

• Improved access for hard to reach communities. 

• Reduction in avoidable hospital admissions. 

 

Screening  

Programmes 

(Cancer) 

• Safe transfer of responsibility for screening programmes. 

• National specifications to be implemented. 

• Implement developments to existing programmes and new 

programmes e.g. CT colonography, flexible sigmoidoscopy, HPV 

primary screening (pilot in  Sheffield), high risk familial breast cancer 

screening. 

• Reviewed and renegotiated local contracts against national 

specifications and standards. 

• Established partnership links between screening and treatment 

commissioning to improve integrity of pathways. 

• Screening uptake rates SYB amongst the best in the country. 

• Increased early detection. 

• Improved outcomes for patients. 

Screening 

Programmes (Non-

Cancer) 

•  Safe transfer of responsibility for screening programmes. 

• National specifications to be implemented. 

• Implement developments to existing programmes and new 

programmes e.g. electronic messaging for bloodspot screening, 

newborn and infant physical exam, common pathway for eye 

screening. 

• Reviewed and renegotiated Local contracts against national 

specifications and standards. 

• Established partnership links between screening and treatment 

commissioning to improve integrity of pathways. 

• Screening uptake rates SYB amongst the best in the country. 

• Increased early detection. 

• Improved outcomes for patients.  

0-5 years 

Programme 

(including HV and 

FNP) 

 

• Establish arrangements for coordinated and integrated 

commissioning of Healthy Child Programme (HCP) – 0 to 5 with other 

key commissioners. 

• Implement HV programme, including increased HV numbers. 

• Implement FNP programme and contribute to delivery of national 

plans to expand FNP. 

• Develop plans to have fully commissioned the new national 

specification for Child Health Information Systems (CHIS) by 2015. 

• 0-5 HCP reflected in JSNAs and HWB strategies. 

• Area Team represented in children’s partnerships including 

Safeguarding Boards to determine ways of working to better integrate 

commissioning arrangements. 

• Influence development of national specifications, standards and 

outcomes. 

• HV numbers increased from 300.7 (December 12) to 331.4 (March 

2014). 

• Ensure deliver agreed FNP activity. 

• Safe transfer of CHIS contracts, review against national specification and 

action plan developed. 

• Safe transfer of director responsibility of effective HCP (0 to 5) by April 

15. 

• Reduction in health inequalities and health risk factors by better 

integrated commissioning. 

• CHIS system in line with national specification. 

• HV and FNP targets met to deliver universal elements of HCP. 

NHSCB and PHE 

agreements 

 

• Common strategies are developed to improve outcomes. 

• Ensure delivery  against commitment under section 7a agreement 

and partnership agreements. 

• Clarity around local arrangements between NHS Commissioning Board 

PHE and LA reporting responsibilities. 

• Effective programme delivery by Area Team. 

• Coordinated screening and vaccination programmes to improve 

outcomes at local level. 

Values and 

Principles 

Services are patient centred 

and outcome based 

Improved outcomes are delivered across 

each of the domains 

Fairness and Consistency – patients have access to services 

regardless of location 
Productivity and efficiency 

improves 

Area Team : South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Public Health Programme 

Prevent premature death Domains 
Quality of life for patients with 

LTCs 

Help recover from ill 

health/injury 

Ensure positive experience of 

care 

Care delivered in a safe 

environment 

Strategic Context and Challenges 

Screening and Immunisation 
 

• Variation in uptake levels. 

• Gap analysis needed to identify variations by GP practice population. 

• Interface required with emergency plans and resilience arrangements. 

• Hard to reach communities to be identified. 

• New and extended programmes to be implemented. 
 

0 – 5 Years 
 

• Challenging position in Barnsley and Doncaster areas with OFSTED Improvement 

Notices and Boards in place and ensure improvement in safeguarding of looked 

after children arrangements. 

• Local Authorities (LA) facing significant economic challenge with significant cost 

improvement programmes to be delivered. 

• Some LAs wishing to explore joint commissioning arrangements for children’s 

services ahead of 2015, using flexibilities available under legislation. 

QIPP Improvements 

• Maximise benefits of technology to improve outcomes. 

• Workforce planning and development to optimise use under workforce 

and planning future workforce needs. 

• Safe and sustainable configuration of services. 

• Joint working opportunities to maximise development of resources and 

improve outcomes. 

• Establish quality benchmarking. 

• Understand and reduce inappropriate variations in spend, activity and 

outcomes. 

Organisational Development 

Screening and Immunisation 

 

• Embed Public Health England (PHE) functions and strategy in to Area 

Teams. 

• Matrix working across Area Team. 

• Integration with QARC to be further developed. 

• Clarify relationship with PHE. 

• Establish training places as part of PHE function. 

 

0 – 5 Years 

 

• Matrix working across Area Team. 

• Working relationships with CCGs.  

• Develop role of Area Team and its relationships within local children’s 

partnerships, including safeguarding arrangements. 

Pre-existing Priorities 12/13 

Screening and Immunisation  

 

• Continued roll out of AAA. 

 

0.5 Years 

 

• Delivery against agreed Health Visitor (HV) trajectories. 

• Maintenance of Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) activity. 

• Safeguarding children responsibilities and improvements needed in 

Barnsley and Doncaster. 

• Development of sexual assault services for people who have 

experienced sexual violence. 

P
age 79



P
age 80

T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of: Joe Fowler, Director of Commissioning, Sheffield City 

Council 
 Tim Furness, Chief of Business Planning and 

Partnerships, NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    25 April 2013 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy Update 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Louisa Willoughby 
    0114 205 7143 
    louisa.willoughby@sheffield.gov.uk  
______________________________________________________________ 
Summary:  
According to the Department of Health’s recently published guidance on Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNA) and Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategies (JHWS), available online at http://healthandcare.dh.gov.uk/jsnas-
jhwss-guidance-published, a JSNA is an assessment (p. 6), 

of the current and future health and social care needs of the local 
community. These are needs that could be met by the local authority, 
CCGs, or the NHS CB. JSNAs are produced by health and wellbeing 
boards, and are unique to each local area. The policy intention is for 
health and wellbeing boards to also consider wider factors that impact 
on their communities’ health and wellbeing, and local assets that can 
help to improve outcomes and reduce inequalities. Local areas are free 
to undertake JSNAs in a way best suited to their local circumstances – 
there is no template or format that must be used and no mandatory data 
set to be included. 

 
A JHWS is a strategy (p.8-9), 

for meeting the needs identified in JSNAs. As with JSNAs, they are 
produced by health and wellbeing boards, are unique to each local area, 
and there is no mandated standard format. In preparing JHWSs, health 
and wellbeing boards must have regard to the Secretary of State’s 
mandate to the NHS CB which sets out the Government’s priorities for the 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

7 
Agenda Item 7

Page 81



2 
 

NHS. They should explain what priorities the health and wellbeing board 
has set in order to tackle the needs identified in their JSNAs. 

 
This paper sets out the work done up to this point on behalf of Sheffield’s 
Health and Wellbeing Board to produce and approve a JSNA and JHWS. Its 
aim is to explain to members of the public the process undertaken and what 
they can expect to see approved at future Board meetings with respect to both 
documents. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
Questions for the Health and Wellbeing Board: 
Does the Board have any comments or questions in response to this report? 

Recommendations: 
 That Board members approve this report and await a full JSNA document in June 

2013 and a final JHWS document in September 2013. 
 

Reasons for Recommendations: 
This timetable gives enough time for the JSNA document to meaningfully impact 
on the priorities of the JHWS. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
Background Papers: 
Department of Health guidance on JSNAs and JHWSs, available to download at: 
http://healthandcare.dh.gov.uk/jsnas-jhwss-guidance-published.  

Page 82



3 
 

JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND JOINT HEALTH 
AND WELLBEING STRATEGY UPDATE 
 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 

 
According to the Department of Health’s recently published guidance on Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNA) and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies 
(JHWS), available online at http://healthandcare.dh.gov.uk/jsnas-jhwss-guidance-
published, a JSNA is an assessment (p. 6), 

of the current and future health and social care needs of the local 
community. These are needs that could be met by the local authority, 
CCGs, or the NHS CB. JSNAs are produced by health and wellbeing 
boards, and are unique to each local area. The policy intention is for health 
and wellbeing boards to also consider wider factors that impact on their 
communities’ health and wellbeing, and local assets that can help to 
improve outcomes and reduce inequalities. Local areas are free to 
undertake JSNAs in a way best suited to their local circumstances – there 
is no template or format that must be used and no mandatory data set to 
be included. 

 
A JHWS is a strategy (p.8-9), 

for meeting the needs identified in JSNAs. As with JSNAs, they are 
produced by health and wellbeing boards, are unique to each local area, 
and there is no mandated standard format. In preparing JHWSs, health 
and wellbeing boards must have regard to the Secretary of State’s 
mandate to the NHS CB which sets out the Government’s priorities for 
the NHS. They should explain what priorities the health and wellbeing 
board has set in order to tackle the needs identified in their JSNAs. 

 
This paper sets out the work done up to this point on behalf of Sheffield’s Health 
and Wellbeing Board to produce and approve a JSNA and JHWS. Its aim is to 
explain to members of the public the process undertaken and what they can 
expect to see approved at future Board meetings with respect to both documents. 

  
 

2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE? 
  
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 

The JSNA and JHWS are crucial documents for Sheffield. By recognising the 
needs of Sheffield people and writing a plan to manage, treat and prevent them, 
the Health and Wellbeing Board aims to have a significant impact on people’s 
health. Sheffield has many excellent hospitals, care homes and services to 
support people’s health and wellbeing needs, and the Health and Wellbeing Board 
will build on the existing successes to deliver excellent outcomes for the city of 
Sheffield and its people. 
 
The Health and JSNA and JHWS focus on people, arguing that the people of 
Sheffield are the city’s biggest asset, able to take greater responsibility for their 
own wellbeing by making good choices. Services will work together with 
Sheffielders to design and deliver services which best meet the needs of an 
individual. 

Page 83



4 
 

3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
  
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has been established for the long-term, 
recognising that big changes to health and wellbeing take time to develop and 
implement, and that appropriate timeframes are required to demonstrate impact 
and achieve outcomes. 
 
The JSNA and JHWS are broad and overarching, recognising that good health 
and wellbeing is a matter for every service area, and that people are healthy and 
well not just because of the health and social care they receive, but also because 
of the nature of the housing, environment, communities, amenities, activities and 
economy surrounding them. The JSNA and JHWS therefore focus not just on 
specific interventions to improve health and social care, but also on the ‘wider 
determinants’ of health. 
 
 

4.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 
  
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.3 
 
 
 

The statutory functions of a Health and Wellbeing Board are, as stated in the 
Board’s Terms of Reference, to: 
§ Undertake a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). 
§ Develop a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) between the Council 

and NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG). 
§ Encourage integrated working between providers including use of pooled 

budgets and other financial arrangements under s75 of the NHS Act 2006. 
 
This paper provides an update for Board members on the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
 
There are three key aims of Sheffield’s JSNA:  
1. To provide a single, comprehensive and trusted analysis of the state of health 

and wellbeing in the city. 
2. To inform, and challenge where necessary, the key priorities of the Joint 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
3. To inform commissioning decisions made across health and social care and 

the wider determinants of health and wellbeing (poverty, employment, 
education, housing, community safety, environment etc.).  

Four events were organised in January-March 2013 to help develop the ‘voice’ 
evidence base for the JSNA. These will be used to provide information that will be 
triangulated with the quantitative evidence we already have. The events were 
organised around the outcomes of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and 
were highly successful with over 300 individual people attending across the four 
events. 

A key part of raising the profile of the JSNA work is through improving the web 
presence, with content being gathered together at www.sheffield.gov.uk/jsna, and 
integrated with the rest of the Health and Wellbeing Board pages. The content of 
these webpages is currently focused on the position statement and information 

Page 84



5 
 

 
 
 
4.2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.5 
 
 
 
 
4.2.6 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.4 

about the events.  It is the intention to further develop these webpages to ensure 
they remain live and relevant. 

Linked to the improved web presence, is the need to establish an online data 
repository, which will help people to make links between the JSNA, other needs 
assessments and other related strategies. This will not replicate data and 
information from other sources, but provide a single point of access to a range of 
other data sources pertaining to health and wellbeing in Sheffield.  

The final piece of work being undertaken is the updated JSNA document which 
will be the first comprehensive JSNA since 2010. This will be based on the 
position statement released in December 2012, but will be revised and updated, 
shaped by the findings from the events that are currently being held.  

This final JSNA document will be brought back to the Board in June 2013 for 
approval. 
 
 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) 
 
The JHWS will be based on the evidence of the JSNA and will set out the Health 
and Wellbeing Board’s main priorities for Sheffield. Its mission is to: 

§ Tackle the main reasons why people become ill or unwell and in doing so 
reduce health inequalities in the cit. 

§ Focus on people – the people of Sheffield are the city’s biggest asset.  We 
want people to take greater responsibility for their own wellbeing by making 
good choices.  Services will work together with Sheffielders to design and 
deliver services which best meet the needs of an individual. 

§ Value independence – stronger primary care, community-based services and 
community health interventions will help people remain independent and stay 
at or close to home. 

§ Ensure that all services are high quality and value for money. 
 
A first draft of the JHWS was consulted on in summer 2012. This received 
widespread approval from both professionals and members of the public, and 
subsequently the JHWS was approved by Sheffield City Council’s Cabinet and 
NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group’s Governing Body in autumn 2012.  
 
Following on from the JSNA’s events, the JHWS will be developed further with 
the intention not of revising it substantially but of adding in more specific 
information, which will include: 
§ Further prioritisation based on the evidence from the new JSNA document, 

Fairness Commission findings, and an extensive consultation process with 
members of the public in April-June 2013. (More information is available on the 
Board’s website at www.sheffield.gov.uk/healthwellbeingboard.)  

§ High-level performance indicators. 
 
The final Strategy will be brought to the Board in September 2013 for approval, 
and will subsequently be used by the city’s health and wellbeing organisations to 
inform commissioning plans for 2014-15 and beyond. 

  
 

Page 85



6 
 

5.0 
 
5.1 
 
 
6.0 

QUESTIONS FOR THE BOARD 
 
Does the Board have any comments or questions in response to this report? 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
6.1 
 

That Board members approve this report and await a full JSNA document in June 
2013 and a final JHWS document in September 2013. 

  
 

7.0 
 
7.1 

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
This timetable gives enough time for the JSNA document to meaningfully impact 
on the priorities of the JHWS. 

 
 

Page 86


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	4 Health and Well Being Board Terms of Reference
	5 Sheffield Health and Well Being Board Plan 2013-14
	6 City Council, Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS England Plans for 2013-14
	Clinical Commissioning Group Commissioning Intentions
	NHS England Progress Report
	NHS England Plans

	7 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Joint Health and Well Being Strategy (JHWS) Update

